\ Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 441131302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Clevaland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, August 29, 2023 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 Wast Sixth Street, Cleveland, OM 44113 for consideration of the listed items and
such other itemns that may properly come bafore the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will be
tive streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RidaRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff and
members of the public, Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Contfrol ("CDC") guidance to avoid crowded places where you cannot
stay six feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding congregating
and social distancing, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and emplioyee health and
safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-six (36) people to allow for
social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff
permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA's Main Office Building ("MORB") at 1240
West 6™ Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more from other individuals who are
not membears of their family or househald,

As a result of a federal court order on Aprit 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order requiring
masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in

effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public transportation
seftings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that members of the
public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www riderta. com/board), on RTA's Facehook
page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 A.M. Organizational, Services & Performance Manitoring Committee
» Quarterly Management Report — Review of 2™ quarter 2023 results.
* TRACTION Results Reporting — Presentation of 2™ Quarter 2023 scorecards
and customer experience surveys

Audit, Safety Compliance And Real Estate Committee
» Internal Audit Quarterly Report — Presentation of 2nd quarter 2023 Internal
Audit Report.

Board of Trustees Meeting - agenda attached.

g s B ;-
W el 50, Aot
India |.. Birdsong Terry s

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBY tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materiais. g




AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, August 29, 2023

Committee Mambers; Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman
Mavyer David E. Weiss
Ms. Lauren R. Welch

. Roll Call

Il Quarterly Management Report — Review of 2™ quarter 2023
results.

Presenter:
« india .. Birdsong Terry, CEO, General Manager, RTA

Hi. TRACTION Results Reporting - Presentation of 2™ Quarter 2023
scorecards and customer experience surveys

Presenter(s):
+ India L. Birdsong Terry, CEQ, General Manager, RTA
= Ehren Bingaman, Managing Principal, TransPro
« James Rubin, Principal, TransPro

V. Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, August 29, 2023

Committee Members: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Calley Mersmann
Mayor David £. Weiss

L. Roll Call

I, Internai Audit Quarterly Report — Presentation of 2nd quarter 2023 internal Audit
Report,
Presenter:

« Tony Garofoli, Executive Director, Internal Audit

. Adjourn



10.

11

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Mesting
Tuesday, August 29, 2023

. Call to order

Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the July 25, 2023 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Board Governance Commitiee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Weilch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
s Chair; Mayor Anthony D. Biasiolta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
«  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
«  Chair; Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
» PBoard Liaison: Ms. Lauren R, Welch

Ad Hoc Committes reports:
s«  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
* Ad Hoc Technotogy Committee — Mr, Jeffrey W, Sleasman, Chair

introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
Introduction of resolutions:
A, 2023-63 -~ Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2022-001 with the

John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company for Project 19.27 — Hayden
Garage HVAC Replacement in the amount of $115,567.00 for a total



RTA Board of Trustees
August 29, 2023

Page 2

contract amount of $602 285.18 and reinstating the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority in its entirety
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

. 2023-84 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-106 with Valley Chevy Truck

fne. for the purchase and delivery of eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup
trucks, equipment and accessories, as specified, through the State of
Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing
Program, far a total price not to exceed $589,121.00 (RTA Capital Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget)

. 2023-65 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-114 with the Ohio Department

of Administrative Services, Office of Information Technology, Multi-
Agency Radio Communication System ("MARCS") to provide
700/800mhz wireless digital radio network subscription services in an
amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a period of three years (General
Fund, Intelligent Transportation Systems Department budget)

. 2023-66 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-123 with Oracle America, Inc. to

provide Oracle Infrastructure as a Service Subscription Services, for a
period of one year, in an amaunt not to exceed $225,000.00 (General
Fund, Management information Services Department budget)

. 2023-67 — Authorizing the purchase of casualty insurance from various

insurance underwriters through US| insurance Services, LLC and Price
Forbes & Partners Limited, or their successors, for a period of 12 months,
in & total amount not to exceed $2,163,038.00 (Insurance and General
Funds, Risk Management Department budget)

. 2023-68 ~ Amending Chapter 216 Public Records and removing Chapter

650 Records Retention of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and amending Personne!
Policy 700 Records Retention and Release

. 2023-69 ~ Authorizing the filing of grant applications with the State of

Chio for State Fiscal Year 2025 financial assistance under all State of
Ohio programs

. 2023-70 — Designation of depositories for active and interim public

monies during the five-year period commencing January 1, 2024 through
December 31, 2028

2023-71 - Estimation of inactive deposits of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority to be awarded for the period from January 1,
2024 through December 31, 2028



RTA Board of Trustees

August
Page 3

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

20,

21.

22.

23.

29, 2023

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a. General Fund Revenue - status as of July 31, 2023 versus 2022 actuals

b.  General Fund Revenue — status as of July 31, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through August 2023

d. Inventory of Treasury Investments as of July 31, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund {cash basis)

2.
as of July 31, 2023
f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through July 31, 2023
g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis} as of July, 2023
h.  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of July 31, 2023
i,

Banking and Financial Relationships as of July 31, 2023

General Manager's Report

President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. In person
b. Phone; 440-276-4600

c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Executive Session Requested — to consider the appointment of a public official.

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 26, 2023
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth
Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's
Board page (www.RideRTA com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public
is welcome to attend in person,

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
2:01 a.m. July 25, 2023
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasictta, Koomar, Mersmann, Sleasman, Weiss, Welch
Not present: Joyce

Staff/Other: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidsan, Feke, Fields, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Jones, Kirkland, Lively, Milier, Schipper, Talley, Watker Minor

Public: Dancy, Durbin, Gibbons, Loh, Mahalsha, Marneckech, MeManus, Santori, Schrnidt, Srith

The meeting was called o order at 9:01 a.m. There were aight (8) Board maembers present,

It was advised that notice of this meeting bad been postad more than twenty-four hours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interasted persons, and that all
requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of meeting had
been complied with,

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the June 27, 2023 Board Meeting had been previously distributed
and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no corrections. it
was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

There were no public comments.
Committee Reports
There were no repotts.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There was no report.

Ad Hoc Committes Reports

There were no reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

Eric Marks ~ Transit Ambagsador

Ashiey Burks — Occupational Health Specialist |
James DeCaro - Electronic Equipment Maintainer
Jamar Roberts - Hostler

Deborah Cha — Legal Intern

Roosevelt Wallace — Summer intern

Jordan Randall - Pubtic Transit Development intern
Lee Harper ~ Operator

. Sean Midgett —~ Operator

10. Erwin Hill - Operator

11. Darlene Price — Operator

12. Ebany O'neal — Operator

R e



RTA Board of Trustees
July 25, 2023
Page 2 of 6

13. Shaunita Howell — Operator

14. Nikki Washington - Operator

18, Breanna Hill - Operator

16. Leon Sibley ~ Operator

17. Matthew Booth — Operator

18. James Hall - Operator

18, Marra Stiggers - Opearator

20. Katrina West — Operator

21. Steven Wozniak — Operator

22. Nicholas James — Operator

23. Reinard Rieves — QOperator

24. Karen Eagle — Operator

28, Shareese Williams Clement ~ Operator
26. Joslyn Mclemare — Operator

27. Schriond Hughes — Operator

28. Marshaliette Clark — QOperator

29. Taniyah Bulgin - Transit Ambassadar
30. Tyrone Lampkin — Financial Accountant ||
31, Myles Crowell - Financial Analyst/P-Card Administrator
32, Kaylie Hall — Transit Police Officer

33, Louis Broschk — Transit Police Officer
34. Raul Rodriquez — Transit Police Officer
35. Adrian Calhoun — Transit Police Officer
36. Tamieka Stewan — Transit Police Officer
37. Jermaine Smith — Transit Police Officer

Fromotions:
1. Anthony Pawluk ~ Bus Mechanic Apprentice
2. Tiffany D. Bowie-Thomas — Dispatcher
3. Tiffany L. Burton — Service Management Group Leader
4. Courine' L. Cook — Laborer Leader
5. Joshua Geyer - Assistant Equipmant Manager
6. Danielle Griffin — Assistant Equipment Manager
7. Willie C. Harrison, Jr. - Revenue Data Operator
B. Marcus R. Lewis — Service Quality Supervisor, Rail

Executive Session

2:08 a.m. - It was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta to go into Executive Session to discuss
the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, damotion, compensation of a public employee or
official. There were eight (8) ayes and none opposed.

2:40 a.m. ~ It was moved by Ms, Welch, seconded by Ms. Moss to corme out of Executive Session. There were
gight (8) ayes and none opposed.

Introduction of Resolutions:

A. 2023-47 (TABLED 6€-27-23} — Amending and restating employment agreement of India [..
Birdsong Terry as General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and authorizing the execution of that agreement. 1t was moved by Ms. Moss,
seconded by Mayor Weiss to remove this from the table. There were eight (8) ayes and none
opposed.

The Board's attorney, Ralph Cascarilla of Walter Haverfield said they researched the General
Manager salaries of 75 transit systems nationally. The data collected was from 2021-2022.
The metrics used werg number of employees, number of vehicles and the budget. GCRTA has
2,100 employees, 600 vehicles and a $482 million budget. The Cormpensation Commitiee
determined the current proposed contract when compared to simitar sized agencies in Ohio and



RTA Board of Trustees

July 25, 2023
Page 3 of 6

in the U.5. to be consistent with a mid-point salary, The contract is amending and restating for
a five-year period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027. The proposed salary is
$335,000. The contract highlights are noted in the agreement. My, Cascarilla provided details
on other organizations for comparative purposes.

Mayor Weiss, chair of the Compensation Committee added that this committes was formed to
address compensation issues mainly for the General Manager. This is one of the most
important duties of the Board. They have worked with Mr. Cascarilla for several months. it's
important for the Board and benefit of the public to be proactive. [t's important for Ms. Terry to
continue to lead the GCRTA for the next five years for stability and continuity, Other committee
members include Ms. Moss, Mayor Koomar and Ms. Mersrmann.

The adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welch, There were eight
(8) ayes and none opposed. |t passed.

Ms. Terry thanked the Board. RTA is getting the funding and recognition it deserves and the
investment through the comimunity. She is proud to lead the GCRTA through transformation.

2023-48 —~ Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority who retired during the second quarter of 2023, the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote. There
were 15 relirees this quarter. Vanessa Henderson, Roberta Nuntey and Kurt Slesinger were in
attendance. The retirees expressed their gratitude for their employment,

2023-49 - Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2019-123 with Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. for
Project 60B - Warrensville Van Aken Substation replacement in the amount of $83,032.00 for a
total contract amount of $3,118,758.00 and reinstating the Genaral Manager, Chief Executive
Officer's change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss,
saconded by Mayor Koomar. Mayor Weiss asked for a roll call, There were seven (7) yes and
one (1} abstention by Mayor Weiss. It passed.

Ms. Moss commended the staff for not having a lot of change orders.

2023-50 ~ Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2022-115 with Northeast Qhio Trenching
Service, Inc. for Project 19.05 — Airport Tunnel and Pump Station repairs in the amount of
$16,500.00 for a total contract amount of $115,400.00 and reinstating the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA Capital Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by
Ms. Moss, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-51 - Authorizing Contract No, 2023-017 with Ave Autormedia, Inc., dba SHARE Mability,
to provide Micro Transit Program Services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00 {(RTA
Development Fund, Programing & Planning Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

SHARE will take the lessons learned from the Solon program to make improvements for this
program, Discussions with stakeholders showed that Aerospace and Brookpark were the best
areas for this program. The Aerozone Alliance includes 50 sg. miles surrounding CLE Hopkins
international Airport. it is home to approximately 200,000 jobs from NASA, Ford, General
Motors and others. They have connected to 61+ businesses, One of their challenges is getting
people to their businesses safely and conveniently, Ms. Moss asked what is the target for
ridership. Mr. McManus said the goal is 10,000 employee subscriptions. He said he would give
a ridership target at the next update. Ms. Terry said there will be a six-month report. She
suggested a mobility tidership analysis.

2023-52 -~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-048 with Richard L. Bowen & Associates, Inc. for
Project 24X - A/E Services for E, 79" Street Light Rail Station Reconstruction in an amount not



RTA Board of Trustees

July 25, 2023
Page 4 of 6

to exceed $859,825.01 (RTA Davelopment Fund - Engineering & Project Development
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, secondead by Mr,
Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote,

2023-53 — Authorizing Gontract No. 2023-61 with Hatzel & Buehler, inc. for Project 12F —
addition of 515 turnout at the west end of Brookpark yard in an amount not to exceed
$2,715,000.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved
by unanimous vota.

2023-54 ~ Authorizing Contract No, 2023-65 with EDM Technology, inc. for the purchase of
magnetic fare media, as required, for a period of three years, with two additional one-year
aptions, in an amount not (o excead $650,865.00 for the base terrn and in an amount not to
exceed $226,573.50 for each option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,104,012.00 {General Fund, Revenue Department budget), the adoption of which was moved
by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Moss and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-55 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-067 with Safety-Kleen Systems, inc. for the furnishing
of antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year in an amount not ta
exceed $120,128.50 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vate,

2023-56 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-080 with ECS Midwest, LLC for Project 18.78 -~ On
Call Testing and Reparting 2023 in an amount not to exceed $200,000.00 for a period of
twenty-four (24) months (RTA Capital and/or Development Fund, Engineering & Froject
Development Departrment budget), the adaption of which was moved by Ms. Mersmann,
seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-57 — Adopting the Tax Budget of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority for the
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2024, and submitting the same to the Cuyahoga County Fiscal
Officer, the adoption of which was movad by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Weiss, and
approved by unanimous vole,

2023-58 ~ Removing Section 644,14 Professional Society Membership from the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, as a duplicate of
Personnel Policy 400.14, and amending Personnel Policy 400.14, the adoption of which was
moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Mersmann and approved by unanimous vote,

2023-59 — Removing Section 644.11 from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as a duplicate of Persorinel Policy 400.11, the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous
vote,

2023-60 - Amending Sections 1014.01 Transit Amenities and 1014.02 Vehicle Assignment of
the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the
adaoption of which was moved by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Mayor Koomar and approved by
unanimous vote.

2023-61 — Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an agreement
with Medina County to exchange operating funds for Medina County’s capital grant funds and to
pravide for Medina County to fund a portion of the cost of GCRTA's 251 Flyer Route, the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by
upanimous vole.

2023-62 — Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an
intergovernmental agreement with the Cleveland Metropolitan Schoal District for student fares
for the 2023-2024 schooal year, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by
Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
July 28, 2023
Page S of 6

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. The annual
inflation rate in the U.S. hit its high point of 9.1% in June 2020, if has been steadily decreasing because of the
FOMC efforts. Since June 2022, it has been falling, At the end of June 2023 inflation is down to 3%. Itis
expected to continue to fall in 2023, The FOMC is meeting today and tomorrow 50 an update iz expected. The
U.5, unemployment rate was 3.7% in May 2023. The June MSA unemployment data will be released August 2.
All reported M5As experienced an increase in their rates from April 2023 to May 2023, For May, Cleveland is
3.8%, up from 3.4%. Cincinnati is 3.1%, up from 2.8%. Columbus is 3%, up from 2.8%. Dayton is 3.4%, up
from 3.2% and Toledo is 3.8%, up from 3.5%.

Ridership for June 2023 was up 11.3% compared to June 2022, YTD 2023 ridership is up by 19.5%,
Comparing 2019 YTD ridership of 15.78 million to 10.47 million for 2023 shows a ridership decline of 33.6%.
Passenger fares for June 2023 was 43.9% above June 2022, This is a result of timing issues. We had received
some large collections from U-pass related income this month, about $596,000. Overall, YTD the U-pass
revenue is about 1.3% higher than 2022, YTD fares for 2019 of $18.56 million compared to 2023 of $13.63
miflion shows a 26.5% decline. Sales tax for July 2023 which is based on economic activity for April 2023 was
9% lower compared to June 2022 The last time sales tax declined for two consecutive months was February
and March 2021 so we will monitor this. The largest factor has been the high interest rates. Motor vehicles and
watercraft was 5.3% lower comparing July 2023 to July 2022, Online sales were 1.1% higher. Regutar and
statewide sales were 0.4% higher.

Generat Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ gave the report. RTA raceived the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) 2023 Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for their budget document,

Ms. Terry thanked the Finance Division for their work, The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) officials from
Chicago and DC visited the Authorlty on June 29, They toured the W, 25% Street BRT Corridor & Broadway
Corridors. RTA along with other agencies will be used as a case study for how to build a successful BRT.

Mr. Schipper added that this will assist with funding efforts. RTA was awarded a TOD grant for the Broadway
Corridor, The FTA officials were able to see the results of TOD projects an W. 25" Street.

Ms. Terry participated in a Transit Voices Podcast that will air on August 10, Topics will include GCRTA Rail
Car Replacement Program, EZfare and Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) in the transit industry. Ms, Terry
served on a panel for the Golden Hour Last Mile & Equitable Transit event on July 24, The focus was
Microtransit mobility aptions, and innovations in Fublic Private Partnerships {P3) model of business in Greater
Cleveland. Representatives from Sway Mobility and SHARE Mobility also participated.

RTA held a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion {DEI) Stakeholders Workshop on June 30 to strategize and finalize
the DEI&B Strategic Plan. Several RTA departments and union members were represented. RTA is committed
to DEI and committed to ensure equity and inclusion is a part of the mainstays of our mission. A presentation
will be made {o the Board at the end of the year. Several RTA employees attended the 2023 Conference of
Minority Transportation Officials National Meeting & Training Conference, July 8-11in Los Angeles, CA. RTA is
involved in the local chapter. Focus areas included Diversity & Equity, Procurement & Contracts, Technology &
Innovation and Grant Opporiunities & Federal Funding. Mr. Kirkland added that it was beneficial to attend the
conference and to see that RTA is active in the conference focus areas.

Public Comments - public transit related items

1. Rico Dancy - He i3 the president of Black Lives Matter for the Deaf. He is a cerified interpreter for the
deaf. He is on the Board of WMATA. They write ADA policies for people with disabilities. Every officer
has an app called VR or video remote interpreter. Purple Communication and Sorenson are the two
companies for the deaf and hard of hearing. He asked what RTA is doing for their law enforcement for
the deaf. Ms. Terry ask that he speak with Chief Jones after the meeting.

2. Carlata Santouri — Operators are not letting the ramp down for carts and don't always call out the stops,
The AC is too high. Elevators smell and need cleaning. Restrooms or port-o-potties are needed, It's




RTA Board of Trusteas
July 25, 2023
Page 6 of 6

hard to see out of the windows with mash on them. She thanked RTA for the plastic seats. People
smoke in the shelters and put their faet on the seats.

3. Loh — She congratulated Ms. Terry on her naw contract. The deaf community is still in need. The
Solon microfransit program is not as successful due to remote work.

4. Alrric Stewart — The public was price gauged with the GM's salary increase. This is not a national job.
The U.S. Secretary of Transporation, Pete Buttiegieg, has a national position and makes $250,000 a
year. This position is much more intellectually intensive, the tax base that contributes to that position is
stronger and his resume is much stronger, Franklin County in Columbus, OH has a higher cost of living
and the tax base contributing to that CEQ's position is stronger. The cost of living in Cleveland is much
lower. The public should have been involved in the salary process. The CAC is still not operating. He
requested routes 15A and 48A be reinstated. Readjust routes 50 and 48,

5 Pluria Gardner - She hasn't heard back about a complaint she filed. It was not investigated properly
and nothing has been done. Ms. Terry said this complaint was reviewed by OEO and Legal with a
recommendation for representation outside of RTA. it went through an internal review and was closed

out.

Ypgoming Meetings

The next reguiar Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 29, 2023, in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West-Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live
streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA com/board) by selecting the meeting date. The publicis

welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:54 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TILE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT. INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2022-001 FOR 2023-63
PROJECT 19.27 HAYDEN GARAGE HVAC Date:
REPLACEMENT August 24, 2023

VENDOR: THE JOHN F. GALLAGHER PLUMBING

AMOUNT: NTE $115,567.00 AND REINSTATEMENT OF GENERAL

Initiator:
Engineering & Project

MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CHANGE Development
ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY Department

COMPANY

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval {1 Review/Comment {1 Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority”) to increase Contract No. 2022-001, Project 19.27 — Hayden Garage HVAC
Replacement to add an integrated service platform to the HVAC unit curbs to enhance
employee safety and to reinstate the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order
signing authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This change order will allow the addition of an integrated
service platform, which is needed due to an increase in unit height caused by the use of curb
adapters for the new HVAC units. The original contract scope did not incorporate a service
platform.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: On May 25, 2022, the Board of Trustees, by Resolution
No. 2022-34, authorized a contract with The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company to perform
general construction services for the Hayden Garage HVAC Replacement project in an amount
of $402,480.00. There have been five change orders issued to date, which have increased the
contract by $864,238.18. A Change Order Log is attached as reference.

Additional project scope requires that the Authority increase The John F. Gallagher Plumbing
Company contract in an amount of $115,567.00, which will result in a total contract amount of
$602,285.18. This change order wilt cause the total contract amount to exceed the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority limit. This action also seeks
reinstatement of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing
authority.

The Change Order Committee has reviewed this change and recommendad rt be moved
forward for approval.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBEE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 17% DBE goal was established for this procurement in April 2022, The John F.
Gallagher Plumbing Company has agreed to maintain the established DBE participation goat
through the use of its existing DBE firm,

POLICY IMPACT: Poes not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307 in an amount not to exceed $115,567.00 ($92,453.60 in federal funds
which represents 80% of the change order cost), resulting in a new total contract amount not to
exceed $602,285.18.



Staff Summary & Comments _
Hayden Garage HVAC Replacement 2023-63
FPage 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejection of this change order will prevent the addition of a safety measure
that would mitigate hazards encountered when performing maintenance on the system.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that this change order be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to modify the
contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: Change Order Log.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

LA

o ,{HWWMM ,gr w*‘ L’} ,,‘f{rffw

General Manager, Chief Executive’Officer




Staff Summary & Comments
Hayden Garage HVAC Replacement

Page 3
APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS HAYDEN GARAGE HVAC
REPLACEMENT
PROJECT NO. 19.27
Contract# 2022-001 Contractor: The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company
Qriginal Contract Amount: $402 480.00 Total G.M. C.Q. Authority Remaining: $15.761.82
Total Change Qrder Amount to Date: $84.238.18 % Change to Date: 20.9%

C/0 NO.| Change Order Description Approval Change Order § New Contract

Date Amount Value

1 Increase unit size to new 8/19/2022 $59,009.00 $461,486.00
POE Standards

2 Emergency Repair 9/15/2022 $15,502.00 $476,990.00
Windermere Heating

3 Emergency Plumbing Repairat  1/10/2023 $2,853.18 $479,843.18
Tower City ’

4 Additional Emergency Repair  2/27/2023 $6,875.00 $466,718.18

Windermere Heating
5 Na cost time extension 7120/2023 $0.00 $486718.18



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-63

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2022-001 WITH THE JOHN
F. GALLAGHER PLUMBING COMPANY FOR PROJECT 16.27 -~ HAYDEN
GARAGE HVAC REPLACEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $115,567.00 FOR A
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $602,285.18 AND REINSTATING THE
GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CHANGE ORDER
SIGNING AUTHORITY IN ITS ENTIRETY (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND,
ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deemed it
necessary to procure construction services, as specified, under Project 19,27 — Hayden Garage
HVYAC Replacement; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2022-34, the Board of Trustees authorized Contract No.
2022-001 in an amount of $402,480.00 with The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company, located
at 36360 Lakeland Blvd., Eastlake, OH 44005, for the furnishing of said construction services;
and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has authorized change
orders with a net contract value of $84,238.18, utilizing the change order signing authority
prescribed in the Authority’s Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual, for a current total
contract amount of $486,718.18; and \

WHEREAS, the Authority now requires additional construction services to install service
platforms for the HVAC units, under Project 19.27 — Hayden Garage HVAC Replacement; and

WHEREAS, The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company has offerad to provide these
additional construction services at a total negotiated cost of $115,567.00, resulting in a new total
contact amount not to exceed $602,285.18; and

WHEREAS, said increase will exceed the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's
change order signing authority; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is seeking Board authority to
reinstate her change order signing authority in its entirety; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief bxecutive Officer deems acceptance of the
offer of The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of
the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of The John F. Gallagher Plumbing Company to
provide additional construction services under Project 19.27 — Hayden Garage HVAC
Replacement, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she ia hereby authorized to amend Contract No. 2022-001 with The John F. Gallagher Plumbing
Company to include these additional construction services,



Resolution No. 2023-63
Page 2

Section 3. This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307 in an amount not to exceed $115,567.00 ($92,453.60 in federal funds
which represents 80% of the change order cost), resulting in a new total contract amount not to
exceed $602,285.18.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing
authority be reinstated in its entirety.

Section 5. That all other terms and conditions of said contract shall remain unchanged,

Section 8. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 29, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurar



Greater Cleveland

Regional Transit Authority

Interoffice Memao

To: Rev. Charles P, Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
: 1
From: India L. Birdsong Terry ,y"’,{f wpmffief/{ v, J{”T«M&"‘
General Manager, Chief Executlve Officer
Date: August 24, 2023
Subject: State Contract Purchase - Eight 2024 Chevy Full Size Pickup Trucks, Equipment,

and Accessories

This procurement will allow the Authority to enter into a competitive contract for the delivery of
eight 2024 Chevy full size pickup trucks, equipment and accessories, through the State of Ohio,

Department Administrative Services, State Term Scheduls.

The Authority requires the replacement of the eight vehicles identified in the table below. Each
has exceeded its life expectancy and has been costly to maintain. These vehicles are used to
support several departments within the Operations Division, including Rail Facilities, Power and
Way, and Transit Police. The table also includes information on the replacement vehicles being

purchased,
Original Vehicle Department | Year | Miles | Replacement Vehicie
958 Ford Expedition (Black) | Transit 2010 | 112,161 | Silverado 2500 Crew short bad 4X4, upfitter,
Folice tow and plow package
CR-11 Ford F-250 2WD Power & 2014 | 99,193 | Silverado 3500HD, 4WD crew cab, long bed
Crew 8' SRW (White) Way
CR-13 Ford F-250 2WD Power & 2014 | 123,764 | Silverado 3500HD, 4WD crew cab, long bed
Crew 8 SRW (Whitey | Way
CR-07 Ford E-250 2WD Reg | Power & 2014 | 102,916 | Silverado 3500HD, 4WD crew cab, long bed
8' SRW (White) ey |\
R-67 Ford F-350 CC Pickup | Power & 2008 | 80,477 | Silverado 3500HD, 4WD crew cab, Iong bed
2WD (White) Way
CR-19 F-350 Crew Cab Powear & 2016 | 174,900 | Silverado 3500HD, 4WD crew cab, lang bed
_AWD Utility Body Way
FM-14 Ford £-350 2WD Reg | Rail 2016 | 191,545 | Silverado 2500H0, 2ZWD, crew cab, short
DRW Lift Gate Facilities bed, lift gate
FM-09 Ford F-250 2WD Reg | Rail 2014 | 199,384 | Silverado 2500MD, 2WD, crew cab, short bed
8 SRW (White) Facilities

We will be requesting that the Board of Trustees recommend the award of this contract at the

August 29, 2023 meeting.




Greatar Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

Below is an example of the replacement vehicle that will be purchased. The unit price of each
truck will vary from $64,530.00 to $68,875.00 depending on model and added equipment and
ACCRSSOries.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IBT/MD



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 .
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF EIGHT (8) 2024 CHEVY FULL SIZE 2023-64
PICKUP TRUCKS, EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES Date:
. LLEY August 24, 2023
VENDOR: VA CHEVY TRUCK INC. Initiator- Floot
. Management
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $589,121.00 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment (1 Information Only 11 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

2.0
6.0

7.0

("Authority”) to enter inte a contract for the delivery of eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup
trucks, equipment and accessories through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative
Services, State Term Schedule.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires the replacement of eight (8) vehicles
that have exceeded their life expectancy and have been costly to maintain. These vehicles will
be used to support the Rail Facilities, Transit Police and Power and Way departments,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Board of Trustees has authorized the General
Manager, Chief £xecutive Officer to utilize the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program,
as set forth in Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority. R.C. 308.43{H)(4) authorizes the Authority to enter into a contract
for the purchase of goods and services from another political subdivision, public agency, public
transit system, regional transit authority, the state, or the federal government, or as a third-
party beneficiary under a state or federal procurement contract, or as a participant in a
department of administrative services contract under division (B) of section 125.05 of the
Revised Code,

This resolution will authorize the purchase and delivery of eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup
trucks, equipment and accessories, as defined in the contract with Valley Chevy Truck Ing.
through the Cooperative Purchasing Program, Contract No. RS1010203, in a total amount not
to exceed $589,121.00. The prices established under the state program are the result of a
competitive process,

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Per Federal Regulations, the Office of
Business Development does not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on
procurements included in the State Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, inciuding but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount
not to exceed $589,121.00 for eight (8) vehicles.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the ability of the Authority
to purchase replacement vehicles, protonging the Authority’s need to maintain equipment that
has exceaded life expactancy.




Staff Summary & Comments
Eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup trucks
Fage 2

2023-64

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of Valley Chevy Truck Inc., be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements,

? 7 D/, jf’ :
\ ,,:ﬁ-ﬂ'-:i{.{;ﬁmfmﬁ LA ﬂf*} i AT
General Manager, Chief Executive Offi;;é?




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-64

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2023-106 WITH VALLEY CHEVY TRUCK INC.
FOR THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF EIGHT (8) 2024 CHEVY FULL SiZE
PICKUP TRUCKS, EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES, AS SPECIFIED,
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIOQ, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, FOR A TOTAL PRICE
NOT TO EXCEED $582,121.00 (RTA CAPITAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”) has identified
the need to purchase new vehicles to replace non-revenue vehicles that have exceeded their
usefut life; and

WHEREAS, such equipment is available through the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services State Term Schedule; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 125.04 provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the
opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services, for the purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, or other tangible
assets; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the Cooperative Purchasing
Program in Resolution 2017-102, as set forth in Chapter 410 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306 43(H)(4) permits a regional transit authority to enter into a contract
for the purchase of goods or services from another political subdivision, public agency, public
transit system, regional transit authority, the state, or the federal government, ar as a third-party
beneficiary under a state or federal procurement contract, or as a participant in a department of
administrative services contract under division (B} of section 125.05 of the Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, Valley Chevy Truck Inc., with an office located at 4767 State RT 18 W,
Wellington, OH 44090, has offered to deliver eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup trucks, with
added equipment and accessories, for a total negotiated contract amount not to exceed
$589,121.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer determinad it is in the best
interest of the Autharity to procure the required equipment from Valley Chevy Truck Ing.,
utifizing the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greaier
Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Valley Chevy Truck Inc., to provide eight (8) 2024 Chevy full
size pickup trucks, with added equipment and accessories, be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Valley Chevy Truck Inc., to provide eight
(8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup trucks, with added equipment and accessories.



Resolution No. 2023-64
Page 2

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount not to exceed
$589,121.00 for eight (8) vehicles.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;

the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements,; and all applicable laws relating to contractuat obligations of the Authority.

Section . That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 29, 2023

Prasident

Altest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No..
CONTRACT: ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION FOR RADIO 2023-65
DEVICES - THREE-YEAR PERIOD Date:
August 24, 2023
VENDOR:  OHIO DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE initiator:
SERVICES, QFFICE OF INFORMATION Intelligent
TECHNOLOGY, MULTI-AGENCY RADIO Transportation
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM (‘MARCS") Systems Department
AMOUNT:  NTE $1,200,000.00 FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD

ACTION REQUEST:
H Approval [0 Review/Comment O Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

2.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to continue using its existing interagency agreement with the Chio Department of
Administrative Services, Office of Information Technolagy, Multi-Agency Radio Communication
System (‘MARCS") subscription service for its mobile radios, portable radios and dispatch
consoles for a period of three years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: MARCS is a 700/800 MHz radio and data network that
utifizes state-of-the-art trunked technology to provide statewide interoperability in digital clarity
to subscribers throughout Ohio and a 10-mile radius outside the state, MARCS currently
serves over 3,000 public safety/public service agencies statewide. The Authority currently has
over 1,000 mobile radios, portable radios and dispatch consoles subscribed through the
MARCS nelwork for the Authority's radio communication. The Authority's Operations Division,
including bus, rail, paratransit, and Transit Police, rely heavily upon the MARCS network to
fulfill the Authority’s mission.

Transit Police were early adopters of the MARCS network. The Operations Division
transttioned its radio communications to the MARCS network in 2019 as part of the Authority's
radio replacement project. Previously, Qperations had used four (4) cell towers, with limited
and unreliable coverage for its communication needs. Prior to beginning the radio replacement
project in 2018, the Authority hired a consultant to study and identify the best communication
method to meet our operators’ and customers' needs. The study demonstrated that the
MARCS network provided superior coverage and was recommended as the solution for the
Authority's radio communication.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. 306.43(H)(4) states that competitive bidding is not
reguired whan a purchase is made from another political subdivision, public agency, public
transit system, regional transit authority, the state, or the federal government, or as a third
party beneficiary under a state or federal confract, or as a participant in a department of
administrative services contract under R.C. 125.04(B). The current fee is set at $25 per month,
per unit, for utilizing the MARCS system. This is the same fee paid by all users on the system.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROQUND: The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or set DBE participation goals on governmental contracts or
interagency agreements,

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments 2023-65
MARCS Annual Subscription
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shali be payable through the General Fund, Intelligent
Transportation Systems Department budget, at a total price not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a
period of three years.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would prevent the use of the
Operations Division from using the MARCS network, a service that is critical to providing
reliable communications throughout the Authority’s operations.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
August 8 2023 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer of the Ohio Department of Administrative Services, Office of
Information Technolegy, Multi-Agency Radioc Communication System, be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal farm and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

-----

s D A
g ﬁwhyﬁ' I fj.w"i; ﬁw‘? A e e Ty

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-65

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2023-114 WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, OFFICE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY,
MULTI-AGENCY RADIO COMMUNICATION SYSTEM ("MARCS") TO PROVIDE
700/800MHZ WIRELESS DIGITAL RADIO NETWORK SUBSCRIPTION
SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,200,000.00 FOR A PERIOD
OF THREE YEARS (GENERAL FUND, INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION
SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authaority”) has recurring
requirements to utilize radio channels with the Ohio Multi-Agency Radio Communication System

("MARCS"); and

WHEREAS, the Authority currently has an interagency agreement utilizing the Ohio
MARCS network for its Transit Police, Bus, Rail, and Paratransit radio communications; and

WHEREAS, said subscription service is only available through the Ohio Department of
Administrative Services, Office of Information Technology; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(4) provides that competitive bidding is not reguired when a
purchase is made from anocther political subdivision, public agency, public transit system,
regional transit authority, the state, or the federal government, or as a third parly beneficiary
under a state or federal contract, or as a participant in a department of administrative services
contract under R.C. 125.04(B); and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the renewal of the
interagency agreement with the Ohio Department of Administrative Services, Office of
information Technology, Multi-Agency Radio Communication System to provide 700/800 MHz
wirgless digital radio network subscription services in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00
for a period of three years to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trusteas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the offer of the Ohio Department of Administrative Services, Office of
information Technology, Multi-Agency Radio Communication System to provide 700/800 MHz
wireless digital radio network subscription services be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with the Ohic Department of Administrative
Services, Office of Information Technology, Multi-Agency Radio Communication System, to
provide said services.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund, Intelligent
Transportation Systems Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a

period of three years.



Resolution Na. 2023-65
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
msurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority,

Sectlion 5. That this resciution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 29, 2023
Fresident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
320 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
_01-12-22  SEH
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resaolution No.:
CONTRACT: ORACLE INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SERVICE 2023-66
SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES Date:
VENDOR:  ORACLE AMERICA, INC. Ag,gugt 24, 2023
Initiator:

AMOUNT: NTE $225 000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR Management

Infarmation Services
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [l Review/Comment [ Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority ("Authority”) to enter into a confract to provide Oracle Infrastructure as a Service
Subscription Services for a period of one year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has been using Oracle technology and
applications since 1995. These applications are used to support the Authority's financial,
procurement, and human resource activities. Because the Authority’s Oracle Enterprise
Business Suite ("EBS") application had reached the end of its useful life, the Authority
moved the EBS infrastructure to a cloud-based environment using Oracle Cloud
Infrastructure ("OC!"} in 2022. This transition ensures that the Authority has a stable and
secure infrastructure solution that receives consistent patching, support, and disaster
recovery. This contract will renew the Authaority's OCI subscription services for a twelve-

month periad,

FPROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This contract is exempt from competition under R.C.
306.43(H)(3), which provides that competitive procedures are not required when the
expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for telecommunications
or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the upgrade of such
eguipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by the origina
source or ifs SUCCessors or assigns.

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined
the negotiated proposal from Oracle America, Inc., in an amount not to exceed
$225,000.00, to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The negotiated pricing is 7.5%
above the estimate for this purchase.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met, A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified
DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Surnmary & Corarments

Oracle laaS Subscription Services - 2023 2023-66
Page 2
6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund,

7.0

8.0

8.0

Management information Services budget, in an amount not to exceed $225,000.00 for a
period of one year,

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would jeopardize the
functionality of critical financial, procurement, and human resource/payroll systems vital to
the organization.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer by Oracle America, inc. be
accepted, and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and cerlified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

Il Lo
{“”‘pﬂja‘:‘{;;;‘ﬁrwﬂﬁ{f a f i wé); i x’“ﬂl‘”.-':;‘”{f«*““.;‘?jﬂ'

General Manager, Chief Executive Gfficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-66

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQO. 2023-123 WITH ORACLE AMERICA, INC. TO
PROVIDE ORACLE INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SERVICE SUBSCRIPTION
SERVICES, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $225,000.00 (GENERAL FUND, MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes Oracle-licensed products for financial, procurement, and human resource management
applications; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306 . 43(H}3) provides that, competitive procedures are not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, the offer of Oracle America, Inc¢., located at 500 Oracle Parkway, Redwood
City, CA 94065, to provide Oracle Infrastructure as a Service Subscription Services was
received on August 15, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer deems the total negotiated
offer of Oracle America, Inc. to be in the best inferest of the Authority, price and other factors
considered, and recommends acceptance theraof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, 8E IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, OChio;

Section 1. That the offer of Oracle America, Inc. to provide Oracle Infrastructure as a
Service Subscription Services, is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be, and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Oracle America, Inc. to provide Oracle
infrastructure as a Service Subscription Services,

Section 3. This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget in an amount not to exceed $225 000.00 for a period
of one year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any,; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Saction 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that QOracle America, Inc. will aitempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to
this procurement.



Resolution No. 2023-66
Fage 2

Section 8, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 28, 2023
President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



0 100-326 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

01-12-22 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF CASUALTY INSURANCE FROM 2023-67

VENDOR: USHINSURANCE SERVICES, LLC AND PRICE FORBES

AMOUNT: NTE $2,163,038.00 FOR A PERIOD OF 12 MONTHS

VARIOUS INSURANCE UNDERWRITERS Date:
August 24, 2023

& PARTNERS LIMITED, OR THEIR Initiator:
SUCCESSORS Risk Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
E Approval {1 Review/Comment I Information Only 7 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURFOSE/SCOPE: This action will provide the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(*Authority”) with catastrophic casualty insurance protection for a period of 12 months.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority purchases a Casualty Insurance Program to
protect its assets against catastrophic loss. The current Casuaity Insurance Program expires
September 1, 2023. Proposals for a new program were requested. The Casualty Insurance
Program includes three policies: Excess Liability, Excess Workers' Compensation and Public
Officials’ & Employment Practices Liability. The main Excess Liability program contains
General Liability, Rail Liability and Auto Liability coverage. Separate policies are purchased for
Public Officials’ & Employment Practices Liability, as well as Excess Workers' Compensation.

This resolution requests authorization for the Excess Liability program, as welt as the Excess
Workers' Compensation policy and the Public Officials’ & Employment Practices Liability
policy. This is the first time that this policy has been included in the resolution as the premium
is now slightly over the $100,000.00 small purchase threshold.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Authority's casualty insurance brokers, US| insurance
Services, LLC ("USI") and their partners, The Rutledge Group, and Price Forbes & Partners
Limited (“Price Forbes”), USI's London brokerage partner, approached several commercial
insurance markets seeking propasals for participation in the insurance program. As presented
at the August 15, 2023 Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee meeting, the
commercial liability insurance market has stabilized somewhat following several years of a very
difficult insurance market.

At a strategy meeting with our brokers in July we were told to expect up to a 7.5% increase in
the premium for the large Excess Liability program, based on their experience with similar
account renawals this year. Similarly, we were given a 5-7.5% range in increased premium for
the Excess Worker's Compensation policy and a 5% prajection for an increase on the Public
Officials’ & Employment Practices Liability policy premium. We are pleased to report that we
have exceeded expeactations on all three lines of coverage, as summarized below.

Final Program Results:

Final negotiations resulted in renewing the entire program limit of $85 million in coverage, as
well as an extremely favorable result on the Excess Liability premium, with no reductions in
coverage. The final premium commencing September 1, 2023 for the Excess Liability policy is
$1,786,783.00, a 2% increase over the expiring premium of $1,750,768.00. This is
$139,217.00 or 7.2% under the budgeted amount of $1,826,000.00.



Staff Summary & Comments
Casualty Insurance Program

2023-67

FPage 2

4.0
50

6.0

7.0

8.0

The renewal premium commencing September 1, 2023 for the Excess Workers' Compensation
policy is $275,355.00 vs, an expiring premium of $292,842.00, a decrease in premium of
$17,487.00. This is a savings of $55,557.00 or 17% under the budgeted amount of
$330,812.00. The Authority was able to generate some competition in this very limited
marketplace ard achieve a significant rate decrease of 12.5% from fast year, which was a
result that was not anticipated.

The Public Officials’ & Employment Practices Liability renewal was also finalized with a positive
resulf. The negotiated renewal premium commencing September 1, 2023 is $100,900.00, a
1% premium increase over the expiring premium of $99,900.00. This is 4% under the
budgeted amount of $104 895.00.

For all three lines of coverage contained in the Casualty Insurance Program, including the
Public Officials’ and Employment Practices Liability policy, the total renewal premiums are
$2,163,038.00 as compared to expiring premiums of $2,143 510,00, a net increase of
$19,628.00 or just 1%. This is an exceptional result. The Authority’s premiums remain below
its peers, demonstrating that insurance companies remain impressed by the Authority's risk
management, safety, and security controls.

After evaluation in accordance with the Authority's established Policies and Procedures, the
submittal from a group of underwriters for this casualty insurance program was determined to
be the most advantageous to the Authority. Coverage limits, self-insured retentions and a list of
the underwriters are shown in Attachment A, attached hereto. Based on the evaluation of cost
and price by USt and its partners for the coverages identified, the Procurement Department
has determined the negotiated price to be fair and reasonable.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This program shall be payable from the Insurance Fund, Risk
Management Departrment budget, in an amount not to exceed $1,786,783.00 and the General
Fund, Risk Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $376,255.00 for a
period of 12 months. The Authority maintains an Insurance Fund at a minimum fevel to pay
severe losses within the self-insured retention. The intent is to utilize the interest income on
the Insurance Fund to offset (and cover, if feasible) the annual liability insurance premium.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Not adopting this resolution will put the Authority at risk of
not having catastrophic liability insurance protection.

RECOMMENDATION: This insurance renewal program was discussed by the Board of
Trustees at the August 15, 2023 Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Commitiee
meeting. It is recommended that the submittal of the underwriters through USIL, and Price
Forbes, or their successors, as negotiated, be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.



Staff Summary & Comments
Casuaity Insurance Program
Page 3

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: Attachment A — Casualty Insurance Renewal

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
avaitability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

T

i / g
/},FN L ww;w,, ¢ pf w‘ ; .M'::- . f‘;*'(f‘f,f.ﬂg 5

General Manager, Chief Executive.@fficer

2023-67



ATTACHMENT A
CASUALTY INSURANCE RENEWAL

August 24, 2023

Excess Liability Program: General, Auto and Rail Liability Insurance:

Coverage Limit: $85 million per occurrence & $95 million aggregate
Occurrence Reported Coverage Basis
Self-Insured Retention: $5 million per occurrence

Underwriters:

Apollo Liabitity Consortium (Lloyds of London Syndicate)
Argo Re Lid, (Bermuda)

Hamilton Re (Bermuda)

Hiscox (Lloyds of London Syndicate)

AEGIS Casualty Consortium (Lloyds of London Syndicate)
AXA XI. - (Lioyds of London Syndicate)Aspen (Lloyds of London Syndicate)
Ascot (Lloyds of London Syndicate)

Argenta (Lloyds of London Syndicate)

Gemini Insurance Company (U1.5.)

Canaopius Managing Agents Limited (Lloyds Syndicate 4444)
MAP (Lioyds of London Syndicate)

Inigo (Ltoyd's of London Syndicate)

Helix (Bermuda)

Excess Workers' Compensation:

Coverage Limit: $105 million each accident

($95 million excess of $10 milion: Above underwriters)

($10 million excess of self-insured retention; Safety National)
Self-Insured Retention: $750,000.00 per accident

Public Officials/Employment Practices Liability:

Coverage Limit: $5 million per ¢laim and annual aggregate each policy year
Self-insured Retention: Coverage A: zero; Coverage B: $250,000.00 per claim; EPL:
$500,000.00 per claim

Carrier: National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA (AIG)



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-67

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF CASUALTY INSURANCE FROM VARIOUS
INSURANCE UNDERWRITERS THROUGH USHINSURANCE SERVICES, LLC AND
PRICE FORBES & PARTNERS LIMITED, OR THEIR SUCCESSORS, FOR A PERIOD
OF 12 MONTHS, IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,163,038.00
(INSURANCE AND GENERAL FUNDS, RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority") requires
catastrophic casualty insurance protection; and

WHEREAS, the casualty insurance program for the Authority includes the master
Excess Liability program, which encompasses General, Rail and Auto Liability coverages, as
well as the kExcess Workers' Compensation policy; and the Public Officials’ Liability policy; and

WHEREAS, proposals from various underwriters were received on August 15, 2023 and
were evaluated in accordance with the Authority's Policies and Procedures; and

WHEREAS, the submittal of a group of underwriters through USI Insurance Services,
LLC ("USI"), located at 1001 Lakeside Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, 44114-1874, and Price Forbes
& Partners Limited (*Price Forbes"), London, UK., for Excess Liability insurance for a period of
12 months with coverage up to the limit of $95 miflion per occurrence, at an amount not to
exceed $2,163,038.00, was determined to be the most advantagecus to the Authority, price and
all factors considered; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the acceptance of the
submittal of various underwriters through US| and Price Forbes for a casualty insurance
program, as modified by negotiations, to be the most advantageous to the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof to the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the submittal of a group of underwriters through US1 Insurance Services
National, Inc. (“USI") and Price Forbes & Partners Limited ("Price Forbes"), as modified by
negotiations, for a casualty insurance program, is hereby accepted as the most advantageous
o the Authority, price and alf other factors considered.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with USH and Price Forbes for casualty
insurance coverages with the carriers, as agreed, and with such other carriers as the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer may deem appropriate, up to the limit of $95 million per
occurrence for year one from September 1, 2023 to September 1, 2024 at premiums notto

exceed $2,163,038.00.

Section 3. This program shall be payable from the Insurance Fund, Risk Management
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $1.786,783.00 and the General Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $376,255.00 for a period of 12
months,



Resolution No. 2023-67
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any, the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and insurance requirements
and ali applicable laws relating to contractual obiligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 29, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Farm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 p——————
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; ' Resolution No.:

2023-68

AMENDING CHAPTER 216 PUBLIC RECORDS AND REMOVING Date.
CHAPTER 650 RECORDS RETENTION OF THE CODIFIED RULES August 24, 2023
AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL — '
TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY 700 initiator:
RECORDS RETENTION AND RELEASE Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval (1 Review/Comment 1 Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

9.0

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPQOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Chapter 216 Public Records and remove
Chapter 650 Records Retention of the Codified Rules and Regulations (“‘Code Book”) of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) and amend Personnel Policy 700.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176, The Code Book is undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code Book will conform to the current structure
and operations of the Authority.

The governing provisions for retention and disclosure of public records are located in two
places: (1) the Code Book, which provides the broad, overarching guidance for the Authority
enacted by the Board of Trustees; and (2) the Personnel Policies, which govern the
relationship between the Authority and its employees and are approved by the Board of
Trustees.

The proposed amendment will consolidate and clarify the Authority's obligations regarding
retention and disclosure of public records in one chapter of the Code Book, while retaining the
policy for Human Resources records in the Personnel Policies,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will clarify the Authority's obligations regarding
retention and disclosure of public records.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Daoes not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would resuit in a
lack of clarity in the Authority's policies regarding retention and disclosure of public records.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the August 8, 2023 Committee of the
Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. Kt is
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Code Book Chapter 216
B. Red-line of proposed amendments to Code Book Chapter 650
C. Red-line of proposed amendments to Personnel Policy 700




Staff Summary & Commenits
Code Book Resolution
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement reguirements.

, o
I.,' r“tfﬁl 9? I‘"C"“#ﬂ ‘jf ‘
- hy fal 1

el N W e

General Manager, Chiéf Executive’Officer

2023-68



Attachment A to Staff Summary

CHAPTER 216
Public Records and Record Retention Policy
216.01 Public Records Policy.
216.02 Record retention.
216.03 Compliance with records retention schedules
216.0304 Public record disclosure.
CROSS REFERENCES

Documents, reports and records - see Ohio-R.C. Ch: 149.43

216.01 PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY.

Consistent with the premise that government at all levels exists first and foremost
to serve the interests of the people, it is the policy of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority to at-al-timesfully comply with Ohio's Public Records Act;-Ohio-R-C-
149:43.

216.02 RECORD RETENTION.
(a) All Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority records shall be

maintained and retained in compliance with the internal operating needs of the
Authority and federalleeal, sState and Federallocal laws.

(b) The Authority has established an Executive Records Management
Commission and adopted records retention schedules to maintain lawful, consistent
and effective record-keeping practices throughout the Authority.

1 conrmhn 00 ha A horitr adaontad
records-retentionsechedule-The CKO,-General ManagerfSeeretary-—Treasurer, Chief
Executive Officer is authorized, through the Executive Records Management
Commission, to revise and update the records retention schedules without
further approval by the Board of Trustees so long as such amendments are in full
compliance with all knewn-applicable laws, rules and regulations governing the

retention and disposal of records created and maintained by the Authority.

216.03 COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULES.

Before disposing of any record, as defined in the Ohio Public Records Act,
employees must ensure that destruction is permitted by the established records
retention schedules and follow the records retention procedures.

216.043 PUBLIC RECORD DISCLOSURE.

(a) The Authority shall comply with all applicable laws regarding the
disclosure of public records. All public record requests shall be referred to the Legal
Department for handling.



Attachment A to Staff Summary

®) m borite ] Lening : i : |

Authority's —disclosure —of public records.—The CEO.-General Manager/Seceretary-
Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer may establish and amend these-administrative

procedures governing the Authority’s record retention and disclosure of public records
without further approval by the Board of Trustees.




Attachment B to Staff Summary




Attachment B to Staff Summary




Attachment B to Staff Summary




Attachment C to Staff Summary

Section 700 —Records ManagementRetention-& Release

700.01 PERSONNEL RECORDS

A personnel file on each employee is maintained in the Human Resources Department. This file
may include, but is not limited to, information regarding previous training, experience and
employment as well as the work history of the employee while with the Authority.

The Authority is subject to the Ohio Open-Public Records Act (©hie-R.C. Chapter 149) and
certain portions of an employee’s personnel file must be made available for public inspection
upon request.

700.02 ATTENDANCE RECORDS

All-departmentsThe Authority will maintain daily attendance records. Included will be time
recorded for leaves, both paid and unpaid, compensatory time off and additional time worked.

All-departments-The Authority will maintain such attendance records on-the-Greater Cleveland

RegionalTransit-Authority’s Time-&-Attendance-Systemin a manner that ensures accuracy and
accessibility.

700.03 COMPLIANCE—WITH—RECORDS—RETENTION—SCHEDULEEMPLOYEE
HANDLING OF AUTHORITY RECORDS

GCRTA shall have the right to access, and employees shall provide prompt access to, all
Authority records, regardless of their location and irrespective of whether they were created by
or stored on non-GCRTA devices (e.g., business and/or personal computers; stationary and/or
portable devices; storage media, including; local drives, network drives, CD, DVD, tape and/or
other storage facilities not owned by RTA).




700.04 DISPOSITION OF RECORDS - SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

It is the hope of the Authority that all employees enjoy continuous and uninterrupted employment
during their tenure as Authority employees. However, at the time of separation from employment,
whether voluntary, retirement, as a result of disciplinary action, or reduction in workforce, the
employee is not permitted to remove any GCRTA records that were created in conjunction with
their employment without the expressed written consent of the Authority. This includes working
copies, drafts, manuals, computer disks and software.

700.05 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (COMPLYING WITH REQUESTS TO
INSPECT AND COPY GCRTA EMPLOYEE RECORDS)

The GCRTA Code of Ethics prohibits the release of confidential information or records of
GCRTA employees. “Confidential information” means any information concerning the GCRTA
that is:

(@) Not a matter of public knowledge;
(b) Exempt from public inspection and copying;
(c) Legally required to be kept confidential by the GCRTA.

All public record requests sheuld-shall be referred to the Legal Department for handling in
accordance with their-internal-proceduresthe Ohio public records law.




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-68

AMENDING CHAPTER 216 PUBLIC RECORDS AND REMOVING CHAPTER
650 RECORDS RETENTION OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND
AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY 700 RECORDS RETENTION AND
RELEASE

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“"Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing its
policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 216
Public Records should be amended and Chapter 615 Records Retention should be removed
from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regiconal Transit Authority
{"Code Book”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has also determined that Personnel Policy 700 should be
amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapter 216 Public Records is hereby amended to read as
specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That Code Book Chapter 650 Records Retention is hereby removed in its
entirety.

Section 3. That Personne! Policy 700 is hereby amended to read as specified in
Attachment B hereto.

Seclion 4. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws,

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Attachments: A. Chapter 216 Public Records and Record Retention Policy
B. Personnel Policy 700 Records Retention & Release

Adopted: August 29, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Resolution

CHAPTER 216
Public Records and Record Retention Policy
216.01 Public Records Policy.
216.02 Record retention.
216.03 Compliance with records retention sehedules
216.04 Public record disclosure.

CROSS REFERENCES
Documents, reports and records - see R.C. 149.43

216.01 PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY.
Consistent with the premise that government at all levels exists first and foremost
to serve the interests of the people, it ig the policy of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority to fully comply with Ohio's Public Records Act.

216.02 RECORD RETENTION.

() All Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authorvity records shall be
maintaimed and retained in compliance with the internal operating needs of the
Authority and federal, state and local laws,

(b) The Authority has established an Executive Records Management
Commuission and adopted records retention schedules to maintain lawful, consistent
and effective record-keeping practices throughout the Authority.

{c) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized, through
the Executive Records Management Commisgsion, to revise and update the records
retention schedules without further approval by the Board of Trustees so long as
such amendments are 1n full compliance with all applicable laws, rules and
regulafions governing the retention and disposal of records created and maintained
by the Authotity.

216.03 COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULES.
Before disposing of any record, as defined in the Ohio Public Records Act,
employees must ensure that destruction 1s permitted by the established records
retention schedules and follow the records retention procedures.

216.04 PUBLIC RECORD DISCLOSURE.

(a) The Authority shall comply with all applicable laws regarding the
disclosure of public records. All public record requests shall be referred to the Legal
Department for handlhing.

(b}  The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may establish and
amend admimistrative procedures governing the Authority's record retention and
disclosure of public records without further approval by the Board of Trustees.



Attachment B to Resofution

Section 700 - Records Management

700.01 PERSONNEL RECORDS

A personnel file on each employee is maintained in the Human Resources Department. This file
may include, but is not limited fo, information regarding previous training, experience and
employment as well as the work history of the employee while with the Authority.

The Authority is subject to the Ohio Public Records Act (Ohio R.C. Chapter 149) and certain
poriions of an employee's personnel file must be made available for public inspection upon
request,

700.02 ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Authority will maintain daily attendance records. Included will be time recorded for leaves, both
paid and unpaid, compensatory time off and additional time worked.

The Authority will maintain such attendance records in a manner that ensures accuracy and
accessibility,

700,03 EMPLOYEE HANDLING OF AUTHORITY RECORDS

GCRTA shall have the right to access, and employees shail provide prompt access to, all Authority
records, regardiess of their location and irrespective of whether they were created by or stored on
nen-GCRTA devices (e.q., business andfor personal computers; stationary and/or portable devices:
storage media, including; local drives, network drives, CD, DVD, tape and/or other storage facilities
not owned by RTA).

700.04 DISPOSITION OF RECORDS —~ SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

It is the hope of the Authority that all employees enjoy continuous and uninterrupted  employment
during their tenure as Authority employees. However, at the time of separation from employment,
whether voluntary, retirement, as a result of disciplinary action, or reduction in  workforce, the
employee is not permitted to remove any GCRTA records that were created in conjunction with their
employment without the express written consent of the Authonity. This includes working copies,
drafts, manuals, computer disks and software.

700.05 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (COMPLYING WITH REQUESTS TO INSPECT
AND COPY GCRTA EMPLOYEE RECORDS)

The GCRTA Code of Ethics prohibits the release of confidential information or records of GCRTA
employees. “Confidential information” means any information concerning the GCRTA that is:

(a) Mot a matter of public knowledge;
{b) Exempt from public inspection and copying;
(©) lLegally required to be kept confidential by the GCRTA.

All public record requests shall be referred to the Legal Department for handling in accordance with
the Ohio public records law.



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regionai Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdseng Terry M g.;w;«f"’ f‘{»f 4&;,%
General Manager, Chief xecutlve Officer f
Date: August 24, 2023
Subject: Grant Resolution

At the August 29, 2023 Board Meeting the Board will be asked to act on a resolution
authorizing GCRTA to apply for grants with the Chio Department of Transportation (ODOT)
for the State of Ohio's fiscal year 2025, which is July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, In
June the Board passed a resolution authorizing ODOT grant applications for Fiscal year
2024 This resolution for Fiscal Year 2025 ts needed because ODOT is asking for
applications for funding which has been made available for 2025, We are required by
ODOT to issue a resolution,

Please contact me at 216-356-3100 if you have guestions or require additional information prior
to Tuesday's meeting.

ILB:cw



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLEDESCRIFTION: Resolution No..
2023-69
FILING OF GRANT APPLICATIONS WITH THE STATE OF OHIO FOR STATE Date:
FISCAL YEAR 2025 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE August 24, 2023
Initiator: Finance
ACTION REQUEST:
8 Approval [ Review/Comment 1 Information Chly 3 Other

1.0 PURPOQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRT, "
to submit grant applications, to enter into funding agreements with, and to accept funds from, the State
of Ohio for eligible transit projects. This resolution is for the State Fiscal Year (“SFY") 2025, which is
July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025,

20 DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: The State of Ohio will make funds available during SFY2025 under
various programs, GCRTA will apply for firancial assistance from the State of Ohio for eligible transit
projects.

State of Ohio financial assistance programs include, but are not limited to:

QDOT Urban Transit Program (UTP)

ODOT Discretionary Capital Program

ODOT Ohio Transit Partnership Program (OTPP)
ODOT Ohio Environmental Protaction Agency (OFEPA)
ODOT Ohio Workforce Mobility Partnership Program

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
40  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0  POLICY IMPACT: This action is consistent with the policy stated at Section 460.04 of the Codified
Rules and Regutations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to take advantage of all
available state and federal grant programs, including State of Ohio Urban Transit Program grants and
Federal Highway Administration programs, as well as the programs of the Federal Transit Administration.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Funding available through the State of Ohio may be up to 80%-100%
of the total project cost.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Do not submit grant applications. This would exclude GCRTA from utilizing funding
available through the State of Ohio to the Cleveland Urbanized Area for transportation improvements.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the resolution authorizing the filing of
applications for financial assistance from the State of Ohio be approved.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availabiity of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

Y "F:f] .v”/'l ot ! LA 4 / "
(/’71 Jéj{,«[ﬂﬂq,ﬁéﬂ , /fﬁ g, L AECH Ay
General Manager, Chigf Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-69

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF GRANT APPLICATIONS WITH THE STATE OF
OHIO FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2025 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER ALL
STATE OF OHIO PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through its State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025 financial
assistance programs, will make funds available to assist public transportation systems in Ohio;
and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is the primary transit
operator in Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is providing transit service
and observing all federal and state rules under all State of Chio programs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
file applications, as required, and to execute contracts on behalf of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Autharity with the State of Ohio for financial assistance (including by transfer of
highway funds) under all State of Ohio programs.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute
and file such applications, any assurances or any other documentation required by the State of
Ohio under the financial assistance programs.

Section 3. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to furnish
such additional information as the State of Ohio may require in connection with these
applications.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is authorized to accept the funds resulting from the State of Ohio
financiat assistance programs.

Section 5. That, in the absence of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer the
Acting General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority is hereby authorized to perform any and all of the above-described functions.

Saction 8, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 29, 2023
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurar



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev, Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trusiees ]
S i~y
From: india L. Birdsong Terry fy%ugfﬁ A ff A
General Manager, ChiefExelutive Officer T Nfﬁ“
Date:; August 24, 2023
Subject: Cash Management Resolutions

Over the next few months, the Board will consider three resolutions related to the Cash
Management function. At the August 29 Board Meeting, the Board will consider a
resolution designating depositories for GCRTA's active and interim funds and a resolution
estimating the amount of GCRTA’s inactive funds. Sections 135.05 and 135.12 of the Chio
Revised Code (Uniform Depository Act) require this of the Governing Body every five
years.

The following is a summary of the three resolutions:
1) Designation of Depositories for GCRTA's Active and Interim funds

This designation identifies the institutions, which will be permitted to receive and
have on deposit the following:

A) Active Funds-Public funds used to meet immediate needs.
B) Interim Funds-Public funds that are not needed for immediate use but will be
needed before the end of the five-year period.

This is on the calendar for 8/25/23 for Board consideration.
2) Estimation of Inactive Deposits

Inactive deposits are public funds, which will not be needed within the five-year
period. GCRTA's inactive deposits will be $0.

This is on the calendar for 8/29/23 for Board consideration.

3) Banking Services Contract
Will enter into a contract with a financial institution to provide banking services for
the period of January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2028. Only the financial institutions
designated as depositories will be eligible,

This is expected to be on the 11/21/23 board meeting agenda.

Please contact me at 216-356-3100 if you have questions or require additional information prior
to Tuesday's meeting.

ILB:cw



Forrm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
328 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
THILE/NDESCRIPTION: Resotution No.:
2023-710
DESIGNATION OF DEPOSITORIES FOR ACTIVE AND INTERIM PUBLIC Date:

MONIES DURING THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2024 | August 24, 2023

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2028

Initiator: Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [0 Review/Comment [} Information Only O Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will satisfy the state law requirement to designate depositories every five

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

years,

DESCRIPTIONAJUSTIFICATION: R.C. 135.12 requires the Board of Trusteas of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) to designate efigible depositories for the Authority’s public montes
every five (5) years. This designation of depositories will be for the term January 1, 2024 through
December 31, 2028. Since the Authority has estimated that it will have no inactive deposits, only those
depositories designated by the Board in this resalution wili be eligible to compete for the Authaority’s
interim monies or for the Authority’s active deposits during the period from January 1, 2024 through
December 31, 2028,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Pursuantto R.C. 135.08 and R.C. 135.10, eligible institutions jocated
in the State of Ohio desiring to be a depository for the Authority's active and interim deposits made
application in writing to the Authority specifying the maximum amaunt of such public monies which the
applicant desires to receive during the period covered by the designation. The Authority advertised
applications on the Authority's website and in two newspapers. Four institutions responded and made
application to serve as a depository for the Authority's active and/or interim deposits.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Affirmative Action requirements will be reviewed for any
financial institution with which the Authority enters an agreement for banking services.

POLICY IMPACT. Itis the policy of the GCRTA to comply with the Ohic Revised Code and designate
depositories for active and interim funds every five years,

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this action. If that oceurs, the Authority will need fo designate depositories for
active and interim monies during the term of the banking services contract.

RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that this resclution be approved to maintain the Authority's
practice of aligning the designation of depositories resolution, estimation of in active funds resolution, and
the banking services procurement.

ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

...4--""?,:__ y,;ﬁ‘ /'/? o - B "
Ve, L. ,_.u"'ﬁéz?f,fg‘(
General Manager, Chigf Executive’ Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-70

DESIGNATION OF DERPOSITORIES FOR ACTIVE AND INTERIM PUBLIC MONIES
DURING THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2028

WHEREAS, applications have been received from eligible institutions to serve as
depositories for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's (“GCRTA") active and interim
monies: and

WHEREAS, said applications are presently on file in the office of the Procurement
Department; and incorporated here by reference; and

WHEREAS, it has baen the practice of the Authority to align the approval of the designation
of depositories, the estimation of inactive deposits, and the banking services procurement,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Reagional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County. Chio:

Section 1. That the applications {o serve as depositories of the active monies of this
Authority, which have been received from the financial institutions referred to balow, are hereby
accapted and the financial institutions are designated as public depositories of the active monies
under the control of this Board for the period from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2028,
provided, however, that none of such depositories shall be permitted to receive and have on deposit
at any time, in accordance with R.C. 135.04, an amount of active deposits greater than that specified
in the application of each depository,

Name of institutions-Active Deposits

Fifth Third Bank JP Morgan Chase
Key Bank PNC Bank

Section 2. That the applications to serve as depositories of the interim funds of this
Authority, which have been received from the financial institutions referred to below, are hereby
accepted and the financial institutions are determined fo be eligible depositories for deposit of such
monies. The financial institutions referred to below are hereby found to be in conformity with the
law, including R.C. Chapter 135 and are hereby designated as public depasitories of the interim
monies under the control of the Board for the period from January 1, 2024 through December 31,
2028,

Name of ingtitutions-Interim Deposits

Fifth Third Bank JP Morgan Chase
Key Bank FNC Bank

The Secretary-Treasurer and Cash Manager/investment Officer are authorized to determine from
time to time the amount of funds available for investment or deposit as interim monies and to select
the classification of obligators for the investment or depaosit of such monies, as provided in R.C.
135.14, provided that if such monies are determined to be deposited as interim deposits (as
provided in R.C, 135.08 and R.C. 135.14(b)(3)) that the award of interim deposits shall be made in
accordance with R.C. 135.09 and the Secretary-Treasurer or Cash Manager/Investrment Officer
shall determine the periods for such interim deposits are to be made and shall award such interim
deposits for such periods.



Resolution No. 2023-70
Page 2

Section 3. That the award of public monies herein made is subject to provisions of R.C.
Chapter 135, including the limitation imposed by, and the variations permitted by, Sections 135.03
and 135.20 thereof, respectively, and subject to the provisions of such Chapter, in accordance with
the financiat requirement of the Authaority,

Section 4. That the Director of Procurement is hereby directed to keep all such applications
on file.

Section 5. That the Director of Procurement is hereby directed to forward certified copies of
this resalution to the financial institutions herein designated as public depositories of this Authority,
and the President and the Secretary-Treasurer are hereby authorized and directed to execute on
behalf of the Board such memorandum agreements relating to the designation of such institutions as
public depositories and the security of deposits therein as are required, authorized or permitted by

faw,

Section 6. That it is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Board
concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an apen meeting of this
Board, and that all deliberations of this Board and any of its committee that resuited in such formal
action were in a meeting open to the public in compliance with legal requirements including R.C.
121.22.

Section 7. That this resclution shall become effective immediataly upon its adoption,

Adopted: August 29, 2023
President

Attest;

Seacretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 .
TerLE/DESCRIPTION: Resoplution No.:
2023-71
ESTIMATION OF INACTIVE DEPOSITS Date:

August 24 2023

Initiator; Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 1 Review/Comment I Information Only [0 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will satisfy the requirement of Revised Code Chapter 135,
regarding the award of inactive deposits.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/USTIFICATION: R.C. 135.05 requires political subdivisions to adopt a resolution
estimating the amount of funds to be deposited as inactive deposits during each five-year period.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that will not be needed for day-to-day operations or in the

neat fulure and are not active or interim deposits. The Greater Cieveland Regional Transit Authority
("Autharity”) does not anticipate that it will have any funds that can be deposited as inactive during the
next five years. State law does not require a resolution estimating the amount of active or interim
deposits.,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Dees not apply.

2.0 POLICY IMPACT: Itis the policy of the Authority to comply with the Ohio Revised Code and
designate inactive deposits every five years.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT; Does not apply.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this action. If that otcurs, the Authority will need to designate depositories for
active and interim monies during the term of the banking services contract.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that this resolution be approved to maintain the Authority's
practice of aligning the designation of depositories resolution, estimation of in active funds resolution,
and the banking setvices procurement.

8.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

) L

./"'?.‘ - ‘_15"" '
jjwv"" - ﬂ Al

o ;{,/ww,, o i

v

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-71

ESTIMATION OF INACTIVE DEPOSITS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY TO BE AWARDED FOR THE PERIQD FROM
JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2028

WHEREAS, R.C. 135.05 requires the governing body of each political subdivision to
estimate, by resolution, the aggregate amount of public monies subject to its control to be awarded
and on deposit as an inactive deposit; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 135.05 provides that all deposits of public monies of a subdivision ir
access of the aggregate amount so designated shall be active deposits or interim deposits; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘Authority”) estimates that it
will have no monijes designated as inactive deposits during the five-year period commencing on
January 1, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2028; and

WHEREAGS, it has been the practice of the Authority to align the approvat of the designation
of depositories, the estimation of inactive deposits, and the banking services procurement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohia:

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
estimates that it will have no inactive deposits during the period from January 1, 2024 through
December 31, 2028, and that all deposits of public monies of the Greater Clevetand Regional Transit
Authority during said period be designated as active deposits or interim deposits.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to make such representations and certifications in connection with this action as are
reasonably necessary to conform with the requirements of Revised Code Chapter 1385,

Section 3, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: August 29, 2023

Pregident

Attest:

Sacretary-Treasurer



7 Jo 7 aded uoday anuaaay

SO0 00T [sasne] (908350 $  SO0TOREPE §  TSEEEE'ZLE § ROO'DGE [ WHEDOEEE 4 SRR §  pEO'mEL 3§ QHEE TPHINID - ERAIDIHE HEWD TeLOL

TAIF#arTs A vZRIA TS SANIATE

SO %26 56] dLE9'Ege Rl T95ELE e TG 'EETE KEE'T - BEb"L5T BIF5LT ISEEED HSUT A0 FAIUN0S HIRL0 GHY SIHIIISALAAIIY TAO1BNS
SO0 - - - - O - - - - ANERIASENENITE B2 NIZIFIC0N - INELA CLED
RO0' - i1zv'esc'1sl TZH'EET'TE - FeAro - - - - EECRLUEELCEE
00 - - - - 0 - - - - PSS THHAGEE
SO0G - - - - A . - - - L0y S3HWD TwdIaas
1741 (3508 €97 e FEH SEEWLE'T TrSLEl =IO [3.5: L T4 Hacy ] SELYTT BIE'SZ S14E833Y SNoOAreDsive
HI0T - Tra'Es - Z9EE HOU0 - - - - LINVESHET SAILYEI0 oI
Rkl - SSPES GOO'LTE S5F05E 0 - - - LHaLvbe 1900 ALRLS Yo 0EE] TINYRELNITA IEANTATHS
REED - LA EST'Iw fra *3IC0 - 2182 TIET - TEhL i 1620 "3RS TwdIaEE] INIWNASENEMITY LITYS
SI9% HEY L S7L'66 ZESEBT'T AUELRET WILT - |:E i £IFas BT A0 SANFLE (W1 INTId AR

G A HIHIO GNY SLHIFUIS SN ERES

%A5T (e s 4] fe5e msl BER'¥PET 590585 T KELD [ {ora'gsh USS'HET ST0'SLT NN HIHLO TYAGLENS
HOEE %ET'ET ETE'EE [E=EE SH LT HEE0 [T {951E] £507ET 162’8 EE T Ta]
wIZd - Ir'sly £E5'05E S21°08E HEDQ HILPE bSE'ET TEEDR SETI6T INCOMI L5TFLLNE
HOE [%aE=s) [irr2's52] CLE'ERT SE5'LAT E3a] 1%ps 5L) (oag'Ee] ISEHr F£1:04) Er e I EREINCEL
% (3059t {10e BT BIE'(BT BIE9IL HIED - - - - SHOISFIFINCS SE3% S3HSIY DAIMPH
HESD [%90-2i€) lest'egal P TeL'T QAT PS6T =580 BETT IR (ErT'T] ALLER #95'35 SHCSEINNOEROISSIINOO ONISLEY A GY

FANGATS GHIT

WEE Ll ROT'E BT EESY Tt L6 b TIL9IY ST RiE' (B E40'R] [EREd 6T SKTEL TRE'EEL SR SULSANS BHLEVHEAO WwAD1RNS
HIELE SAT'E HITESE To' (w6 55T Tiap0sT FCET] (L (6r2'TI0'E) OBT'5r2'T2 TPEEETE LIS A 53 wE

SRR DN F 0T

®GE'G HEED kS0'TSE 335 08T 053 [ER'ST Srs'E HESD BZ9'TE TELHATE A5 6L 53dv'd HITHISSd TULDLRMS
HETT WEE G GEZ'SED JETITTE SOPTSEE HETT WETPL JEGLIT TuE g LITHn LISTE alTER]I= e
*ETT {558 1) [EES'5E] ALE6S'T LEFTSE'T T (%87 P} [ CRHEOST OEL’8 SEWET
HETQ {xzaest [ter'oszl [A5 311 T8¢ DEE HIb0 - TI5T5 TEEER TargE TOYYIIHYS LRI
Nesl SL5E LiEoa AT ITEIER'E SIT'GEY %A HIEY 9gL's AliTe 196'L5% BERLFEF TR
HIEE ECEE QEE'ESE 5 IESPRFS S TOSTROAS 5 WESE 514 [5gL7er) S PIEELE 3 GLZELE 4 53w HEwD

RIS WG vS

L 40 % HINTHIH JTTHD dla Bk ECTTERE ADMVHIN ITHVED HINCW HiMGW
EXTHHND it ETUT BT Wi HAIdd IN3gEND

TZOL 'TE AN GNY EZOZ "TE ATAF OIINI ORI 3HL 504
QNN TWE3Ra0 - 7345 B0 QL 03800 QInlIzy HSYD 20 1y0d3d
ARTHOHLNY 11SHNYHL 1¥NOIDTH GHYIIAITI BALYIED IHL




7 Jo T 28ey uoday anuaasy

SO0 HEET ERTOGEE $  TSEEEEZLY §  BUT'EEC'SST §  S%O000T {srtrsl ErzarEF Wl GRIEE & CEEZIESE 3§ QN4 THINAS - AEMIITE RSV TWEOL

CANFHETES AMOLLTZAREVAS INMEANTH

T WAE LT LELHAET TIEREY'E LTT'S50°R %A T - LOEEBT LUEEER MRS T RS 0 S3TH00 HIRID ONY SINWNISHLIMNATE TYADLRNS
=000 - - - - =000 - - - - AHAVSSHMAVETE Y10 NITLTI0M ~ TN DA
=on - - - - ®00D - - - - i TrEI0A
S0l - - - - %00 - - - - WRSHYS 195303
=00 - . - - I - - - - Lo 53uw0 Teidanad
wELD 1wt Tet I555"2EZ) ZESLD LETSES ®ITD [s5e Bt {cea'rzl BT1'ST LoKI'tE S1dI3034 SNOANVTIZISIN
®I'T - ZrFEE TEOEE - HOT D - - - - FINTLSISSY ORIV A0 TvEI0H
SERE - -4 S5F 058 00IE HHO - - - THA LW T30 B0v1S “IWHI03H) DA N2 NIVIE SR NAA Y
HSED - STEDHE AEE R 0IEDE %R0 - {eon'es] - LN FHALIA TI0T EW1S “19EI0T) INSNASHNENITY LNHS
WIED H5E$T ATELES LIELEET QI5E BLET - EHT'SSE B BDE Coa's SN 01 INYEINd DN

VI A S3EA05 FIHID GV SRS IS aE g

PapO> PIBH - 402Gy ZTAT

HIST [=sT81] {50 ELSE SOOSES'E PEPESE'E HD T84 B {ee17TIT) ST T SOZ°867 2MNANTE EIHLO PYADAANS
01D [EH [T SHHFRET [T %P0 [ES<TT) 0L TTE T5T'8 0XITET I
wlED - STTOES T8 FHY 055 BER'D - SBTTS s21'C0T 0015 IWCONRI LSTHELNI
%010 SOE'ETS EES LS EESLOT OaTT HKEFD [rsoet 18T0'El 2B OL oanT FAEOTINT 1IN
S9TD [ssa5°5] [z0cm) aresar SCECAT LD - - - - SHOISHINGD 553 S2HD1 DNEnisH
SEID [T 2k I5ctaes] QLT TECT SEZOLLT %5L'0 lsab-2rl lega'Twt BOL'SE SOE"2E SHCESINPEIYEHOISTIMCOAONIS LY MY

FANIATYE SIFRID

HIELH HEZTI 2E9'5E8'T 2T 9L 5E A LR B IR 1%458°01] 1ZRE" 2N} THEEEZ 0T 09509 TT SAIHEENS SHEIYHIAQ T LDUENS
RIE LY SEC'T BEFSER'T EATETE PLOTES BT HIT LD [EXEHE] (eI L] TFE'ESL'DT E00"SPaET Y1 ISP SIS

FFEEETS Dlvaad0

WETE HOED L5EI%Y 05% IET'ST ERLALE'ST Bl JE ) {s1TED GIELET'T FESBIEY 53UV HITNISTrd TELOLANS
%EI'E [wszz) T3] SAYESLE EELLERE wENT 1526'T] eIt AT GTS 214 DNELIADIL T
HETT o] LECTAL LELESET DAG'OET'T EEFD - CEL'E LEL'E . S5YET:
LD %208 51708t L 0ET urg=1) HIFD - {91'sg 7oyt oooT SOYTIFHR INFINES
HEET =35 R 1$ER 1) LTI OIHFTIES e =4 Ma| 18E0'TEYY =T ] D008 SIATYS SFAILLSSEE
SLEE wEB'EY Tasaas $  T9SEIEE 5 OIOMTS § mSSE RELE BIT'ST T GIr'EE §  DOTDoA 3 SIHYS HEYD

5T HTORSET v

TrloL A0 % FINVIGAS TN g aLy EIDIAE 1L TRECH 40 % LINTTHTAK E2TTTT BELNOWE HikOis
ANZHHITY i 44 LMTEHND ANIHED 13sang

£E0Z "TE A100 G3ANT Q01N I+ HOS
TN TYHINZD - 1390NE 0L OFWYEMOY QIAIZITY HSYI 20 180238
ALTHOHIAY LISMNYHL TWHOIDIH ONVIIAITD H3193HD IHE




%00°1 %OAZT EZ9T'S5LTLAS
WET'S %GLE LiI'SlpUsES
%LEE WET'S LIE'EFEDELS
Ukl WKL | BSL'S5LE0LS
wiZG Wl | BeEE08'sRd
%ES Y Hi5D by 7Es 208
W'y %I0'S | LFESO0ERS
HEE L WBL'E | ZEEAPELZS
IONVIEYA  SONVAD WNIov
lsa%als % OLAzzoz IR
£Z0Z  SMSHIA 76 £202

A5 LFFLALE
2L P3akLE
SOFSEETSZLE
£ER'BCEE0LE
SLO'E0F 7S
5552558
SEF'EET LIPS

TANOOE IES

FEVINILES
L&
i 74

EPL'ZEE'L9ES  BERSLLFSIE (%559) WPE L
ThYSPE'SELS  EETEELVECIE (%590E) {94p0e
ESE'EOLETLS  ZOOOTF'TILLS [ea057F) {BsE
HZEEZOLOLE  BLETIT 163 bk %L5E
SFTPFEERE ZERRES'CLE Bl 2 BLALB
TELFOEFOS  O5SL51/5% %I5'G WIE L
VELERSOPE  SOG'CEYOES %iED %BELE
LEEPEEOES FRLOIS'RLE BLESL W%Ele
IVRLSY TNLOW SIvWiIss IONYHD
QER A AHENOW £202 %5 HINOWK
LT 1O SNSHAA TWALIY  ZZo2
ATEHA oW SNSYEA
£T0Z ford T

ZTYT'CELTLLS

VESBLEELE
LPEEEE GTS
B LIPDTES
GEHESCELE
LIDBOT 0TS
PERERETGES
5L LES
2R LPSLES

WTELSY
AT

202 LSNONY HONOWHL 1413234 IWNLoY
S3IXVL FSN ONY S3¥S

ALBOHLAY LISHNYHL TYNOIDIN ONVIEATID 43LvInD

BIetllss £207 VBl 3ubiy {pOrEL s LS} 00T
ey 2207 vewt saybiy {61 'c0a'rs) %08e

alA

aewnsa £207 snbny ueyl samol (5221 %ss
1By zz0z 1sebny ueus saybug (05852 7%) %kTL

S92'RENESES
PRECLLEES
ESEEEL TS
£99'605'2E8
¥BS'160° 128
28O0k ZEE
LOS'STUEES
SLG'OB0'EES
FiZO5'ELS
FEOTLE'ELS
LEF'DSE FES
FOr B0 0ES
ZE09E'LES

EIVTHEE]
praia

SHEVEE'YSES

BOR'SELTES
CEOEZNLES
LIS P05 ITS
ErE R LIS
102"P0022S
Q61'G¥TEES
PEFBL0EES
ZEE'EL1B5S
SEF'SIF BLE
PR LR EZS
 pE0'E5a5LE
{5E'FRZ'IES

LYY
T

Puop

(AdBUsLIngG

BFLIPE'GETS Wi0LE
SELTEY 0TS yzaw3saa
EEY'SZE S HIBNIAON
Gy 05F' L ES H390.130
SETRLE'EES HIAGWH 438
BL5EIGIES isnony
TEG 0N 0T AT
PO FLE LTS awnr
BELPIE LS AN
ZHEIELBIS R
285 ¥95'02% HoHEWN
BOC'ZRE £36 FXSLA iR
PELOLE G AN

THOLOY [EZYERER]
V25T HLINOW



E
%560
WEE G
Y%EED
w00g
%005
WEE'S
WoH0'S
o0'S
Sbl’s
Wl
Wl'S
WOE'R
o0+
WEE'E
%O0'E
w00'Z
YEL L
WG

£E6
leg

WSFS

%85S
Wh6'G

%EE'S

Y560
1855

HEE

LS
PR
WSEF
%EE'C
RBSS
WELE
w00
02k
YLSD
ESTTAT
YE6C

- T T —

SE62
DEG
Sre
ot
114

Sale'y

WEE
(SE E

b

ALENLYINE  15343LN
JDYHIAY QL SAVOD  J3INEDIY
ADTHIAY

SEE'S5o LS 95t Zo6'ZFLS
0z LZ'Z01% 3
os I5Z'107% L
o £25'00s% L
ek 00000G'SE  SE0E
PLOBGLE 000008 6% LEL
goriELS 00oDO0'EE GO
£ELES 000008 ¥ oes
0SZ'Leg o0 00g'st agt
I9LB1S DOS'REF LS vSZE
158'92% 0Z5'LI0°28 0L
BELPFS COR'EEl 1 168
6200022 DOD'003'GE  SENE
159E158 ooo'coo'slE  SEOL
SLLirS Q0o'000'sES SS0L
1EP5128 0LL'G8'6%  £8OE
otL7iEs GZZ198¥E  08DL
LELESS STLPPE S oys
0% 094'6L 005 L
55L'5LES
05 C9S'CEES L
0% ELGES L
0% SLLPSESE
i3 8.9'78 L
0% SohZSEeE L
LERPELS BT S6F 05S
& 8t BS00L b
0s BZE 125 L
o3 578 '869% L
o3 geg'ases L
0% BZ1'00Z' L2 L
88952 JERISL8S SA0E
05208 00O 003'es Se0:
6ort OO O03'ES  SSO0L
OuLeES 0oGO09'Es  Sa0E
£le'ss O04°266'¢S  S80E
as 062'26% L
0s £E2'ges'as
0% ££2'295'8% L
TWISNMd  SAva
TYEDL WA3 L

710t abey

HEYE ASH
HNGE AT
dA3MEHNYE LM

SN IO 13418
SAILEDAS LT
SNVICTIN 1331s
SAILIHMIES dOLTIH
S3AILIEADAS dOLTH
SMYI0DIN 13418
SOYICOIN 134US
SMYI0TIN 1341
SNVYICTIN 713318
ST ICOIN TRH4S
SNYIOZIN T3HLS
SMNYI03IN 13818
SNYIO0IN 13418
SMNYIO2IN 13418
CHHG 40 31viS

CIHG 40 3LW1S
SA3MSMNYS AT

HNYE AT
OHO 40 31wiS

HNYE AT
HNYE NOLONI1HAH
HNYE DN
HMYE AT
CEHO 40 3E¥1S
SMAIC3IN TA21S
SMYICDIN 133148
SNYIOTIN 13518
SMYI00IN 1341S
SN 100N 13211s
HNYE AT

HNYE NOLDRIENNH
MNOILNLEESHI

Ho3 ATN-NISYE HOLYD

HI3-1NYED

HI3 AM-HOEWIE 19007

81H4
JWTHA
9344
SWIHL
SWHA
SWIH4
giMd
SIWNTHA
87H4
B1HS
H1H4d
2WIHA
g2
g7Hd

CHHG HYLESHDYIN 1000

CHHO Yt
HIE AIH

HIZ AT
OEHO WYL

w3 Aau
ARI0O0Y WYE SEYS

LNOOZEY AQOESND Dnd
ONN3 ALNLDY 334043

OEHO YYLES
g3H4
H1H4
83H4
27H4
g244

EAAN ASH-LD0Y INYHDE3N

13AHYIN ATNTHN
LHINNYLEN

£20Z "LE AN O SY
SINIFWLSIANI ASNSVYIHL 20 AHOLNIANI
ALRORLINY LISNYHL TYNOIZTIY ONYISAT IO HaLYIHD

PrAVEATE]
EEDE/LS
cEo2iLe
SEOEIHE
GZOLIAET
GEOELLEY
GEGLIL L
FEOCIGLIEL
AT R AL ES
GEOTILLI0E
CEOLIY
GECEIOEIG
GZCErgdim
GE0EALTI9
SEETR LG
GZOEIOIE
PECEBEIS
AN

EE0EM
A R

CEGENE
TR

IGAETANR
ETICLIE
LCoLie
EZILie
sghef e
ETACTA L]
AR LA AL
SEgTIE
¥IOTIOTIG
FEOEAE
CEOEIENL

SE0LIHE
EAR-e]

ALTHLYIN IBFHIYNC

CEQEf LML
CE0EFLER
S TAER ST S
SE0EeE
C2OEIEEE
seGEri e
CERTILLIE
ZZOTILITE
At A L FANES
CEOTILTIOL
CEGTPTIO:
ZEGEMTIE
ZEGCI0E8
AT A aAL]
CEOTIFEIG
220 LE
EZGLIATIE
EEOLILEN

ONiE HOLVYW TY207 TWioL

OMNE HOLYIN T930%

ONME LNIWITHOING MY TYLEDE

XA I
EIOLELIL

EZOTIRELL
EEOEILTIL

EEGEMENL
EEOTIEEIL
EZ0ELTIL
PXATAE R
LE0TALIL
fEgelisg
00T
CEGLILENL
FEGETIOCIE
LEOENE
EZCTI0EO

OMd INFWZITHOINT e
AN SONYHNISNF T¥L0L

N FANYHMSMY

NS IVHINTD TYLOL

ONOE TYHINGD

THA= LINFRISHILSY ONOE TYLOL

EZ0EILEIL
ElR 1)

OB ININEIHEETY N0

g4



TBEP

HESY

8B5S
WEE G
E A
ERG
Sl G
e g
%059
Y038
%iLC
polle
MEl's
YSEG
YLE'R
YRECG
GG
Wldg
w240
WES'E
Y%GEE
405D
WELE
Y%0FE
YW0E ¥
W%0S'E
%ETE
Y002

L TAR
iAol
WES'G
¥lIS'0
EPO
0Ll
reL
WOE'T
EANY

WBEE
eSS
SEE0

B6E

3]
car
el
2495
BF5
LZ4
L2d
LG9
£8r
big
LiE
£08
£54
Eir
06E
9%
oar
£9g
EEE
LEL
&89
ECS
Tt

4
B¥2
¥ir
5T
oFe
GE¥
&G

L
b

YEE'GTT'P  $66'050'Z8CS

dT3A  ALENIYW  LS3H3LIN
FJoTEIAY QL SAYO J3anEoov

IOYVH3IAY

L6¥RTZTS  DTOPSEPSLE
(53 DI TERPEG L
0% 9588 !
0% 0SL'BELE L
FEF L3S Q00'000'sE GBat
0SZ'62% Q00'000'cS b4t
¥or'ELg ooo'son'st  GEol
ECR'S0LE oo0'so0'es sEoL
000'5#2% 0o0'030°0LE  GADL
952D 0o0'MenIE 8L
FLO'BOLS Co0'oho'ss 17
Qet'okes o00's00'ss L5
BiF'PLLS 00'eo0'ss 289
Q0¥ LTES oon'eno’ss  £oo
GEGFS 2E5°9E68 L
D/G'es ooD'eng'sE  SE0
QIZ'SYES COG'SFLRS EZOO
QSR IZS E50S'S56'PS GEOL
fEL'GLED CON'000'SE Lss
ori'LEL CoN'ooNU'eE SEOL
Log'es SBLPREFE  SBMH
OFETIGES oo0'000'ss £9¢
QOL'ELLS Go0'0o0'ss BZ.
SO0'00ES o80'oe0’ss SE0s
g5s'sLE 0OU0CoSE  SEO
LA 1R 080'000'SE SED:
208'ps PESULRPS oLg
QITLEES ErLTyeLs
1851E 5L 8678 SE0E
£oF'ay 0O9°000°Z8  SEDL
EG¥FGIE 00D 000EE SEDL
SR 0ES 000006 ganl
EESBES CIESHR'ES BGtr
SEC'bhE CIETPRES ELE
I6LPES 25| vE4'FE £15
43 B64'GEES L
o Fi-f Ak
[i53 EFLEOE' LS L
0% GEOES !
IFLISNING  SAVA
TYEOL WH3:

Z o 7 wbeg

OIHD 30 3Lvis
HMYH AT
HNYE DNd

SNVIO0MN 1IHES
SAYIOOM 1330S
SALHNI3S JOLTTH
SN0 T34iLS
SOYIO0M 134LLS
SHUMNIZS JOLTHH
SHLHNIZS dOLTIH
SOYTIOOM 134LLS
S31MNIZS dOLTIH
SO0 J340LS
BOAYTIODN 13411
SRV G 134HLS
SV IO 14ILS
SOVTOON 1341LS
STHIHENIZS JOLTHH
SOYI0DIN 1341LS
SAYI0O3IN I341LE
STLLNDAS 2OLTHH
STEHNTES 01THH
SIWI00IN T341Ls
SMWI0TIN 3341Ls
SYI00IN 134118
STLHNDZS JOLTHH

SMI0JIN 134148
SNYIODIN 133118
SNYIOTIN 133i1s
SNYI0TIN 134118
SMEI0JIN 13211S
S0 134118
SALLADTS 04Tt
HNYH ASM

OfHC 40 3EWiS
HNYE A%

MCALALELSNI

CIHO HYES
HI3 A3M

INNOIY ACCLEND DNd

g344
DWTHA
JNIHA
HiH4
g1H4
A
HEIHS
et
gTH4
B33
dTHd
JhTHS
JRTHD
30 W AHNSYEYL 80
49 Wl 83HA
451804 g7H4
20 WOl g044
g4
a1H4
gTHd
g1Hd
g1Hd
Ji0N ABNSYIHE SN

NS
BO44
gTH4
H1H4
81H4
87H4
310K AHASYIME 8N
HIZ A

CIHO Wl
HIZ AT

LRIMNNHLISH

£20Z L A dO SY
SINIWLSIANI AMNSYIHL 20 AZOLNIANI
ALRIOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY ANV 13AT IS HALVYIND

EC0es g
LTOLS e
LE0LME
QEOTILLL
FEOCrETier
BEOTIBLG
DEQEILEE
DECEINE
AV AT
SEO0TIREE
STOZHEEg
PEOZELCL
SEOZILEML
FEOZIRES
SE0LALEN
SEQZBEN L
FEOZIGEAL
FEOTIRESE
SE0ZrEES
FEOZIGIEL
FEOZraee
EEDEMES
SEOLIEM
SEOLES
GSELEF LIt
AT XN

FEOZHE
PO
PEDLIOEG
PEDESES
FEOLITIE
FEQLISENG
PECEMOEIF
EE0LILR

STOES e
ALAN
1%
ALTHNLYN

CEOSSLESL
EZOZALIL
[HAAT RN
BEOEILLL
XAV
A4 ERi ]
EZ0L/IZE

EEGEIHE
EEDZIBERE
CEDEIREE
EE0TLEE
EEDZIPEE
EE0ZHHE
EEDTISEE
20T
ZE0EWEnL
VEOEISLAL
ZEOZ/OES
ZE0ZTIELIS
1TOTSEL
CEDEIGErS
SEDEMSES
ZE02MER
ZEOLI0EIG
CEGTFLIY
SEOLRTE

WEgivie

120ZiGH

LIGEMES
1ZHEfR
[F£E AL AL
ZEnENIe
L0
EEOINENL

BZoErR
EEOTHAEE
aA1vdad
2SYHIUN

SENGS TV WLOL
0NN IAYISTY TeLOL

OnNd 3AHISEY

ONOS TYLIdYD VLY TRLIOL

Ok T LidvD wid
AN NOISKIS TVADL

ONN4 NOISHAd
aRN4d



LLE'62LS Paiiniay apisy 195 AHUOWN

£LT'eas'es (£20T 10} spisy 15} aouspeg Juaung

NieweInay puoy

O Q56" LIFES | DD GAGOPS ES OOO0S0LSiS  ODSSEDEES 0O'SL5'0E6S 0008 DO'5L5'0E8% oo opo'sig’les SPog |B10

00085 LSe" DEGSL O DO COCDSC' L 00054082 COO%L 35T 00 Q5L '9ss O oo DER QL GEQZ 28 ABY XB] ERIES-AL0E SBlUSg

onQ05'sES'E DO'0SLZERE 0oCoo0sT' L a0'0%L'ELL COOSL'Z4L 1) O 0SL'ELL 0oCOnLe's  LE0Z 280 A8y XB SRET-QL0T SSUSG

O0'0%.'55F '+ DOGie'gsn'y 0OC000DLE O0'GiE'9BE COSiEgEe g O0'SLE'BRE O 0OXSERSL  SZOT 0ag ‘wAY ¥B 4 SPES-SLIF S|UAg

o' 00Z'9z8 L QOGO BLLAE 00 Coo oL L a0 00L 801 0oa0L'sH aoa o0 00L B0 I00O0or0's G202 Deg ARy XE] SREeS-yi{F Saleg
EEZ0T LTOTILTL gCoTRiEL [AEFA N AR ELNTILY CTOTIEID ETOZILID 20T Sjeq] spuog

watanbay | austssnnbey 1e1gefed [siefeg Auawannboy jBigelieg ogeled Buipueising Apniep

iqag el FaAtag JHag ledioung sasat 23a35 1qag jediounig Isaasu) rediauuy (B10] {EUS

£Z0Z "L ATINM 40O SY
SNIYLS ANY 3TTNGIHIS 3DAN3S 1830
ALROHENY LISNYHL TYNCIDIY ONYEATTD 43 Lv3HD



o0 YEDD
%85 il Sl
Yalk'P YEEE AR
%BE'E WlS'E %P
YiGE wB0E YWiRT
W8T A5E WBYE
YE0E HBCE WiZE
el PO WB0T
Yedl'L %L WFYE
%080 WBE0 WEQL
YLD wEed %85S0
%Wl 0 hEF T WEF D
WbO0 prA WEET
Yid0 pEERY ®wEL D
#O731A #4314 AR ETTY

1MUY CUYONVIS 3Swvu3IAY

4ok

¥oR'YIO'SE

9L2'grL 18
fygiioet
2420
OFE 05
£51°684 %
£2E 895t
4867958
SO0'CEES
056014
PRE PO
DOE'1vS
LBETIES
RE[THE]
LSIuILN

EZL'CEB'STES

ZEE'FOF'94ES
vLLSr0SSEE
v6E'BP. 'S5
LB IPE'ESES
Bi5'I89'00ed
BEB'BSYEEES
591 '846'65E8
BES'S05'0VES
POB'I5E'S6EY
059'cLE'98TS
0B.2'04F 00ES
E25'PrE 98T
HONYIYE
IOYHIAY

Y b9 0

WRELY

Y
W%iEr
SBES
=i
HEg
WEF P
el
#OTIIA

IHHAINGIN THYONYLS

RN

WELT

WB1'S
HIGG
HEGY
ETAT
Bl
ol
%9Z ¥
FOEIA

PiBlA ABQ 2 pung Asuoyy Anseais g sfenbe piany 1eyem #

'SHieg Aunsesdp Wous g 5oy spisid Justeanbs uodnoo sBeraae Bunoly #

XIANI (JICNN} HIAO STIFIA IDOVHIAY v1d

%l P BL5'0E6'8S
SLEE+ FOODEZ LS
LOEF PEo'oaL'LE
SO EFTELF LS
ShGE ¥ FEE'RCP'LS
%il'y LET'ErF' LS
SH9B'E SZE'SED"1S
SELE PELeE0'1S
2 RETN RETTHEE]

IDVHIAY LSTYILNL
£Z0C

£20Z '€ AINr HONOWHL 31va OL ¥vHA
FONVINHOSH3d INTWISIANI 4G AUYHINNS

ALHOHINY JSNYHL TYNOIDEH ONYI1ZAT 1) YA LYIHD

£95'SE1'6.E

LEL'ZGY'ZEES
z2i2'|9E'zees
LBE'B856'ERES
592 'B6Z 08E3
815'16E'8L88
A ATA S
838'008'CLES
SNV VY
FOVHIAY

JE¥0A GE ¥Y3A

H3IFNIZIA

HFFRIACN

HIE0LI0

H3IgWa1d438

LSNSOY

AHar

aFnar

A

TEddY

HOHYW

AYNEE34

AHYIINGT
HiNGHN



£ Jo i abeg

9%'59% 31v3 0L ¥Y3A 2202
£R'EIZ'SS 31V OL ¥vaA £202
AR £Z0Z AINF
TSP TS OHOYY1S
1578 INNODOV dIIMS MNYE AZY
QNNZ LNSWIOHOAND MY
87 18Y'0% 3LvQ 0L ¥v3A 2202
05 LLO'BPLS 1V 01 ¥Y3IA £202
G1'900'%ZS £207 AP
S 000 7e5 OHOWYLS
NN IONYHNSNE
PS'8L0'00LS J1¥0 01 ¥v3A ZZ02
B10EL°088% 3LvQ OL ¥v3A £202
BE'SRL'001S £207 ATNE
[ LINNODTY SIS HNVE ADH-INNODDY ENYHORIW
£0°081'cS ENNODDY AGOLSND ONd
00°000'8LS gH4
RIPSL'ES INNOODY d3TMS HNYS AT
aeL1L'eLs OHOYYLS
Se¥0LS LNRODDY XYL STIVS-NOLONIENNH
GNNA TYYINID
¥1'€29'Z8 31v0 O1 HYAA 2202
¥0°19E'E5LS JLva Ol ¥v3A €202
78 IZV'OES £20Z ATNT
AWFAZO LENAYIN AINOW NOLONLLNAH
aNAZ ININTHILAY ANeg
£20Z ANP

(SISYE HSVYD) SONINEVYI INJWLSIANI NO L804I
ALROHINY LISNVH1 TYNOIDIE ONYISATTD Y3 Lyaus



G B.E'9TE
GEELELLES
E¥0as
troat

g5ts
BLELLE
BG 673
BEBFS

8018418
G696 '8EE
GELi1'9E
LG'is
¥6'9LL"0%

106L2'ELL8
PG OBE'0LLTS
ZF 20Z'gres
S0°0ZCE
00'000'0218
9£°986'622%

£ 4oz afeq

24V0 OL Uv3A 2202
2LVE 0L HY3A £202
£20e Anr

S1W0 OL Wv3A B20T
SIVE OL Jv3h €202
20 AT

ALVD QL UV3A 2202
3iV0 OL "Uv3A £20¢
£20Z ATnr

30 Ol HYIA 2202

FIW0 0L WvdA €262
L0 ANy ‘

£TOC AN

(SISVE HSVD! SONINYYI INTJWLISIANI NO LNOJIN
ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIOIN GNVISAT D ¥3LVIND

LNNOCODY d3IMS MNYE AT
aMNa TYLdYD VI

13HEYIN AINOIN MNYE ATH
LNMOIOV ALIALLDY 334071403

LNNOJOV d33MS HNYE AT
OIHOYYLS
ONNd NOISNISd

ANRDDOY dIIMNS MNYE 4TSN
DK

HOEYIA VOO T-OIHCHY LS
QN HOLYIN T 007



Yri'r
£08'GEL 'BLES

LR6'0EE'ES
¥EB'6ZC 7
{E62'945'1 ¢}

OPE'2iZ'9%
VO OL
dv3A gele

28 ALV PERS
ce'eeeiLiT o
LLEL2'008%

BO¥EL'GLLS
98'GLF'E0L 'S
92'197'262%
EF EBT
00'054'8CLS

£ I¥P'EOLS

£ jo ¢ obeg

%BEF
gL£'o0z 08ES

$00'962' 1%
YC6'BZE VS
(e0L'peLes)

£4.'008%
Anar

ALIVa 0L ¥Y3IA 2202
ILYT 0L HY¥3A €202
ESOT AN

2LW0 O Yv3A 2202
3190 Ol HY3IA EE0T
€20 AT

gZlZ ATNr

SINTMELSIANE NG Q1304 30VHIAY

{LS00) oMY Y8 INIWLSIANI 3OVHIAY

ENYYE INODKNI LTI LNY
ONIONZE

“ONIKNIDIE

SLEFHIEN QFNHITY

(SIS¥E HSYD) GIAITOTIY LSIHI LN

SANNA 77V 1oL

LNNOT0Y dIIME HNYE ATH
SNHAS

OIHOHYLS

ONG:d 3AUISIY

(SISYE HSYD) SONINYYI INFWLSIANI NO 1H0d3H
ALHOHLIAY LISNYYL TYNOIOZY ONYI3ATND H3Ly3us



ALIENIVI
ADYNIAY

%BEF
%reE
WEE0
%858
%HSE0
%8LY
QA
IOYHIAY

007081 LZE795°Z8ES

%5658 000'00%'T523
WBIGL LOS'BZE LS
%1962 PEE'EELELLE
%000 LIGES
THEST 65Z'0E9'6%
aviod INNONY
20 LN3JH3d F0v4

$66'955°Z8E%
£Z8ES1C8ES
tos'see’ie
BE'E61 LIS
LI5S
OLG'4 2068
TYIDNIHd

£20Z ‘1€ AN SY
O0d4180d INJWIS3ANI SO NOLLISOJdWOD

O|230d FUIWFSaAL] FEI0
SLNIDG JUBLLLIZAOD ST
Junoooy ey Yparn sbumeg
CIIC |

NS00y daamg sueq Aey
Hnoooy el Asuog
Juatunisu



W B SEUDEERDE JOy
OB-OEQZ "One UINDSSY $2355R | J0 PJEOY RUE BI() 82NPAD0.Y BAIZRASIUSLIEY *[AJt|0d j9aRF Y Ajlacyimy SIsuest seuciday PUB|3AFT B1RALG S O SLORZNTRY pLR $3RyE PRHECD Y o 954 Jwdey 03 B35 aseatd

TEOE *£T Y2repg DOLEp ABUURY 1U2JE ¢ 01 uQRId0) AJCSIADY [IEISUSISSIIIO S3113 Ol
BO-TTOZ J30MWAN Lo £ UDISSRULIOT S2113 OI8O
GIQE G Aeisp pR1ep inaregyy (2331 - WOq) PICRUSE Bugy |ays 0y woieido ARDSIADY 215 UOSSSIULUOD SAI1] CIHD
T-+EEG-IN-EO0Z SOOWRN UORIEDD (B0 )u) UOsswllos 521413 S0
[2] pe {GleaEnT swoadag Ipack paskEY Glug
Al ousHELLOT U 84 T Sfenprepu) ajgesdde aop papiacd 32e4 §1 UasRULID U S

TIMON
afpan jang HUeq Suues gng
JeJisiEaY puog U3 HJOK B3] J0 JUEY
SIUDLUTSAAE-O T HY LS
JELIMIBPEN
ILNQENY XL ] $BEET FUE JEIFBFBY pUOY Hueg w0 IUNEE
NGO MO435] P L LEE
R1ed 319823 PUR 1IN0y RFpOYsn S HUEE e
SIS e ueely Aueg A3
drysucneE@l 30 2an3eN LEDITNGISH] [Baueinl] faueg
. £T0T 'TE MNF 0 sy

sdiysuciiey Erueeiy pue Fupjueyg
Aquoyanyg ysuel jeuciay puB@ASD) o380



